

District Accountability Handbook

September 2020

The purpose of this handbook is to provide an outline of the requirements and responsibilities for state, district, and school stakeholders in the state's accountability process established by the Education Accountability Act of 2009 (S.B. 09-163). Federal requirements and responsibilities under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) pertaining to accountability have also been integrated into this document.

Table of Contents

Accountability Pause for the 2020-2021 School Year3
Introductory Note
Description of the Accountability Pause
For Districts with Identified Schools through State or Federal Accountability
Stakeholder Roles
Contract Contents
Compliance with Contract Terms
Accreditation Contract Template9
District Performance Framework9
Annual Accreditation Process
Title IA Accountability
Title IIA Accountability
Title IIIA Accountability
Composition of Committees
District Accountability Committee Responsibilities17
Requirements for District Plans
Accreditation of Public Schools
School Performance Framework
Comprehensive Support and Improvement School Identification
Targeted Support and Improvement School Identification27
Composition of Committees
Committee Responsibilities
School Accountability Committees for Charter Schools
Review of School Improvement Plans
Performance and Improvement Plans
SchoolView
School and District Dashboards
Performance Frameworks Reports and UIPs
Appendices

Accountability Pause for the 2020-2021 School Year

Introductory Note

In response to the evolving conditions under COVID-19, the department is pausing the state and federal accountability systems in the 2020-21 school year. On March 18, 2020, <u>the Governor issued an Executive</u> <u>Order</u> pausing both state assessments and state accountability to enable schools and districts to focus on providing alternative learning opportunities for students during this time. The accountability pause was later codified by the legislature through the Finance Act (HB 20-1418). The department also applied for and received waivers from the U.S. Department of Education for additional flexibility on federal requirements and use of funds.

Due to the accountability pause for 2020-21, this accountability handbook should be used differently than in a typical year. To ensure access to a reference of the accountability system in Colorado as it was intended, this document remains mostly unaltered; the major exceptions due to the pause year are summarized below. Additionally, throughout the document, there will be a blue text box in the beginning of each section highlighting what accountability elements have been paused or altered for the 2020-21 school year, if applicable. See below for an example of the text box:

NOTE ON CHANGE FOR 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

- SAMPLE. This is where the changes for the 2020-21 school year will be noted in each section.
- Changes that happen after the release date of this document will be made available directly to District Accountability Contacts. Also, feel free to contact CDE staff with any questions related to this document. A list of contacts including e-mail addresses is available at: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/uip_contacts</u>

Description of the Accountability Pause

Building on the previous experience of accountability pauses (e.g., state pause in 2015-16 school year for assessment transition, federal accountability hold due to the reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA)), the department is proposing many of the same practices. The following are the proposed practices for the 2020-21 school year: *Note: As some adjustments may be needed as events continue to unfold, visit <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/20-21pause</u> for the most up-to-date information.*

- District and school plan types will continue to implement their 2019 ratings for the 2020-2021 school year. See the next section for an explanation of the hold process for schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA.
- Districts and schools (including alternative education campuses) will not receive a 2020 performance framework, nor updated plan types. Preliminary and final reports will not be available.
- The request to reconsider process will not be available in 2020-21.

- Extensions were provided for the public posting of school and district UIPs (e.g., April 15 to May 15, May 15 to Oct 15). Districts and schools that took the flexibility in spring 2020 and did not post a plan are now expected to submit an updated plan for posting by October 15, 2020. The State Board of Education approved the accountability rules in support of this flexibility. The department is also working with the state board to permanently move the submission deadline for all districts and schools to October 15th beginning in the 2021-2022 school year. See more details and provide feedback here: http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/timeline-shift.
- The 2020-21 UIP process resumes with the typical timeline (e.g., January 15, April 15), except for those districts using the 2019 flexibility which will submit in October. <u>Schools and districts may view</u> their own customized due dates within the online UIP (pre-populated report).
- Without state level data, improvement planning may need to emphasize other areas in the interim (e.g., local data, non-assessment data, root cause analysis, action planning, progress monitoring).
- Training and supports will continue to be available upon request via phone and webinar through the remainder of the school year. Support opportunities are listed here: http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/uip training

For Districts with Identified Schools through State or Federal Accountability

This section is aimed at districts and schools on Performance Watch under the state system (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch) and/or schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA (i.e., Comprehensive Support, Targeted Support).

- In addition to retaining the 2019 plan type, schools and districts on Performance Watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch) will also retain their Performance Watch year without advancing (e.g., a school on Year 4 of the accountability clock in 2019-20 will remain on Year 4 in 2020-21).
- The State Board of Education will not hold any clock hearings in 2020-21, unless the district opts for early action. This includes sites in year 4 that were preparing for hearings in 2020-21, as well as sites that have had previously directed action and were scheduled to reappear before the board. Districts that opt for early action will be prioritized for a State Review Panel visit when they resume.
- Progress monitoring will continue for sites that have received directed action from the State Board of Education. This may include an additional visit by the State Review Panel.
- The department will contact districts about scheduling and re-scheduling State Review Panel visits and recommendations.
- Schools identified for Comprehensive (CS) or Targeted Support (TS) and Improvement, under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), will maintain their 2019 identification category, except for TS schools identified in 2017 or 2018 that have met the district's exit criteria.
- UIPs submitted in May 2020 from CS schools received feedback over the summer and will have extended time for implementation of any required changes until 2020-2021 UIPs are submitted. Schools that received approval of their CS plans will not be re-reviewed for ESSA requirements in 2020-2021.
- Schools on the 2019 ESSA identification list (both CS and TS), or through the state accountability
 clock will continue to be eligible for supports and funding through the EASI grants in 2020-2021.

Overview of Accountability System

Colorado's education accountability system is based on the belief that every student should receive an excellent education and graduate ready to succeed. Success is determined by goals outlined in the Colorado Achievement Plan for Kids Act of 2008 (CAP4K), which aligned the public education system from preschool through postsecondary and workforce readiness. The intent is to ensure that all students graduate high school ready for postsecondary and workforce success.

The accountability system is designed to describe performance of schools and districts and direct attention to areas of promise and areas of need. Colorado's system is informed by both state and federal legislation and highlights overall student performance, graduation rates, and performance of historically underserved students. The Education Accountability Act of 2009 repositioned the state's education accountability system to focus on the goals of CAP4K by holding the state, districts and schools accountable through consistent, objective measures and reporting performance in a manner that is highly transparent and builds public understanding. Additionally, on December 10, 2015, the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) was reauthorized as the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), and added new federal accountability requirements beginning with the 2017-18 school year. Colorado's ESSA plan builds upon the state accountability system to focus even more keenly on ensuring historically disadvantaged populations (e.g., poverty, minority, English language learners, students with disabilities) are meeting performance expectations and graduating ready for postsecondary and workforce pathways.

Through Colorado's accountability system – integrating both state and federal expectations -- successful schools and districts are recognized and serve as models, while those that are struggling receive additional support and increased monitoring. Colorado identifies those schools and districts for support and monitoring based on their overall performance, their graduation rates, and/or the performance of historically underserved students. During more recent years, the department has built an infrastructure to unify its system of supports. For example, the state offers a single application for state and federal school improvement funds (known as the Empowering Action for School Improvement or EASI grant) and a common improvement planning process (known as the Unified Improvement Plan or UIP).

Districts and schools in Priority Improvement or Turnaround should refer to the "Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement" to this handbook for more details on their specific requirements and on the Accountability Clock process (<u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/accountability_clock</u>). A wide array of services and supports are available, including additional funds through EASI. For more information, go to: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/fedprograms/easiapplication</u>.

Stakeholder Roles

Colorado's system of accountability and support requires the coordinated efforts of several key stakeholder groups:

- The **Colorado Department of Education** (Department) is responsible for providing highquality information to a variety of stakeholders about school and district performance. The Department evaluates the performance of all public schools, all districts, and the state using a set of common Performance Indicators (i.e., achievement, growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness). The Department accredits districts and supports them in evaluating their district's and schools' performance results so that information can be used to inform improvement planning. The Department reviews and approves all improvement plans for schools and districts on performance watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch).The Department is also responsible for implementing federal education legislation, including identifying schools for support and improvement (i.e., Comprehensive, Targeted and Additional Targeted Support and Improvement), notifying the districts of identified schools and approving and monitoring the implementation of improvement plans for Comprehensive Support and Improvement schools (CS).
- The **Colorado State Board of Education** (State Board) is responsible for entering into accreditation contracts with local school boards and directing local school boards regarding the types of plans the district's schools implement. The State Board directs actions when districts and schools are identified with Turnaround or Priority Improvement plans for more than five consecutive years. The State Board also reviews and directs the Department on the contents of the ESSA state plan.
- Local school boards are responsible for accrediting their schools and ensuring that the academic programs offered by their schools meet or exceed state and local performance expectations for attainment on the state's key Performance Indicators (i.e., achievement, growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness). Local school boards also are responsible for creating, adopting and implementing a Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround district plan, whichever is required by the Department, and ensuring that their schools create, adopt and implement their assigned plan type.
- District leaders are responsible for overseeing that the academic programs offered by district schools meet or exceed state and local performance expectations on the state's key Performance Indicators. Leaders play a key role in creating, adopting, and implementing their district Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan, whichever is required by the Department, as well as reviewing their school Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement or Districts also play a key role in recommending school accreditation categories to the local school board. Under ESSA, districts with CS schools must support them in developing, in consultation with stakeholders, improvement plans that address the reason(s) the schools were identified.

The district, school, and CDE must approve the CS plan. Further, districts have the responsibility to review, approve, and monitor Targeted Support and Improvement (TS) school improvement plans and establish the time limit for improving academic performance by the student group(s) that triggered TS identification before the district takes additional action. Districts with CS or ATS schools must also assess, identify, and address any resource inequities to ensure that CS and ATS schools have access to resources equitable to other schools.

- District Accountability Committees (DACs) are responsible for (1) making recommendations to their local school boards concerning budget priorities, (2) making recommendations concerning the preparation of the district Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan (whichever is applicable), (3) providing input and recommendations to principals, on an advisory basis, concerning the development and use of assessment tools to measure and evaluate student academic growth as it relates to teacher evaluations, and (4) cooperatively determining other areas and issues to address and make recommendations upon. DACs also are expected to publicize opportunities to serve on District and School Accountability Committees and solicit families to do so, assist the district in implementing its family engagement policy, and assist school personnel in increasing family engagement with educators. Small rural school districts may waive some family engagement requirements. A more comprehensive description of the composition of DAC and its responsibilities is available later in this handbook.
- School leaders are responsible for overseeing that the academic programs offered by their school meet or exceed state and local performance expectations for of attainment on the state's three key Performance Indicators (i.e., achievement, growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness). They also play a key role in the creation, adoption, and implementation of a school Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan, whichever is required by the State Board, as well as in the development, approval, and implementation of CS, TS, and ATS plans as required under ESSA.
- School Accountability Committees (SACs) are responsible for (1) making recommendations to their principal concerning priorities for spending school funds, (2) making recommendations concerning the preparation of the school Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan (whichever is applicable), (3) providing input and recommendations to the DAC and district administration concerning principal development plans and principal evaluations, and (4) meeting at least quarterly to discuss implementation of the school's plan and other progress pertinent to the school's accreditation contract with the local school board. SACs also should publicize opportunities to serve on the SAC and solicit families to do so, assist in implementing the district family engagement policy at the school, and assist school personnel to increase family engagement with teachers. Small rural school districts may waive some family engagement requirements.

District Accreditation Contracts

Contract Contents

The Department is responsible for annually accrediting all school districts in the state. Accreditation contracts have a term of one year and are automatically renewed each July, so long as the district remains Accredited with Distinction or Accredited. A district that is Accredited with Improvement Plan, Accredited with Priority Improvement Plan or Accredited with Turnaround Plan will have its contract reviewed and agreed upon annually. The Department will send districts individualized accreditation contract templates annually if the contract needs to be renewed. Signed contracts (by the superintendent and local board president) are due back to CDE, and then are signed by the commissioner and state board chair.

Parties to the contract may renegotiate the contract at any time during the term of the contract, based upon appropriate and reasonable changes in circumstances. Each contract, at a minimum, must address the following elements:

- The district's level of attainment on key Performance Indicators— Academic Achievement, Academic Growth, and Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness;
- The district's adoption and implementation of its Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan (whichever is appropriate based on the district's accreditation category);
- The district's implementation of its system for accrediting schools, which must emphasize school attainment on the key Performance Indicators and may, at the local school board's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the district; and
- The district's substantial, good-faith compliance with the provisions of Title 22 and other statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to districts and all Department policies and procedures applicable to the district, including the following provisions of:
 - Article 44 of title 22 concerning budget and financial policies and procedures;
 - \circ $\;$ Article 45 of title 22 concerning accounting and financial reporting; and
 - §22-32-109.1, C.R.S., concerning school safety, and the Gun Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C.
 7151.

Compliance with Contract Terms

If the Department has reason to believe that a district is not in substantial compliance with one or more statutory or regulatory requirements applicable to districts, it will notify the local school board and the board will have 90 days after the date of the notice to come into compliance. If, at the end of the 90-day period, the Department finds that the district is not substantially in compliance with the application requirements (e.g. the district has not yet taken the necessary measures to ensure that it will meet all legal requirements as soon as practicable), the district may be subject to loss of accreditation and the interventions specified in sections 22-11-207 through 22-11-210, C.R.S.

A district's failure to administer statewide assessments in a standardized and secure manner so that resulting assessment scores are reflective of independent student performance will be considered by the Department in assigning the district to an accreditation category. It may result in the district being assigned to a Priority Improvement plan, or if the district already is accredited with Priority Improvement, a Turnaround plan.

Accreditation Contract Template

For the Model District Accreditation Contracts, see Appendix B.

District Accreditation Reviews

District Performance Framework

The Department will review each district's performance annually and release performance frameworks by mid- to late-August.

NOTE ON DISTRICT ACCREDITATION FOR THE 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

For all schools and districts

- District and school plan types will continue to implement their 2019 ratings for the 2020-2021 school year. See the next section for an explanation of the hold process for schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA.
- Districts and schools (including alternative education campuses) will not receive a 2020 performance framework, nor updated plan types. Preliminary and final reports will not be available.
- The request to reconsider process will not be available in 2020-21.
- For districts with new schools that did not receive a plan type in 2019, the department is currently working on a process for plan identification. Check with the Accountability Analytics Office for more information.

For schools and districts on Performance Watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch)

- Districts on Improvement or Performance Watch and districts with schools that have received directed action from the State Board of Education received their updated accreditation contracts in summer 2020. Contracts for all other districts were automatically rolled over.
- In addition to retaining the 2019 plan type, schools and districts on Performance Watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch) will also retain their Performance Watch year without advancing (e.g., a school on Year 4 of the accountability clock in 2019-20 will remain on Year 4 in 2020-21).
- The State Board of Education will not hold any clock hearings in 2020-21 unless the district opts for early action. This includes sites in year 4 that were preparing for hearings in 2020-21, as well as sites that have had previously directed action and were scheduled to reappear before the board. Districts that opt for early action will be prioritized for a State Review Panel visit when they resume.

All adjustments to this year's frameworks are reflective of state assessment and statutory requirement changes. The <u>Accountability Work Group</u> and the <u>Technical Advisory Panel</u> for Longitudinal Growth collaborate with the Colorado Department of Education each year to inform how adjustments are incorporated into performance frameworks. A summary of the final changes, along with information about anticipated future changes resulting from legislative action can be found here: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/performanceframeworksresources.</u>

NOTE ON THE COVID-19 POLICY IMPLICATIONS STAKEHOLDER GROUP IN 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

While the department will continue to work with the Accountability Work Group and the Technical Advisory Panel throughout 2020-21, the legislature tasked the commissioner with creating a stakeholder group. Referred to as the COVID-19 Policy Implications Stakeholder Group, the group has the responsibility of providing recommendations to the state on how to address issues related to the impact of COVID-19 on state assessments, accountability, accreditation, and educator evaluation. More information is available at: http://www.cde.state.co.us/safeschools/covid-stakeholder-group

The Department generates the District Performance Framework by reviewing each district's performance, along with safety and finance assurances to determine the district's accreditation rating. The District Performance Framework measures a district's attainment on key Performance Indicators identified in Education Accountability Act of 2009 (article 11 of title 22):

- Academic Achievement: The Academic Achievement Indicator reflects how district students are doing at meeting the state's proficiency goal, based on mean scale scores and percentile ranks of schools on Colorado's standardized assessments. This Indicator includes results from CMAS English language arts; CMAS mathematics; Colorado Spanish language arts (ACCESS); CMAS science; PSAT 9 & 10 and the alternate DLM/CoAlt assessments. Performance is determined overall by content area, as well as by disaggregated student groups. Disaggregated groups include English learners, free/reduced price lunch eligible, minority students, and students with disabilities.
- Academic Growth: The Academic Growth Indicator reflects academic progress using the Colorado Growth Model. This Indicator reflects normative (median) growth: how the academic progress of the students in the district compared to that of other students statewide with a similar content proficiency score history or similar English language proficiency (ACCESS) score history. As is the case with the achievement indicator, results are calculated at both the overall level and for disaggregated student groups.
- Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness: The Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness Indicator reflects student preparedness for college or careers upon completing high school. This indicator reflects student graduation rates, disaggregated graduation rates for historically disadvantaged students (free/reduced price lunch eligible, minority students, students with disabilities, English learners), dropout rates, Colorado SAT mean scale scores, and matriculation rates that represent the percent of high school graduates that go on to CTE programs, community colleges, or 4-year institutions. Additionally, industry credentials, as recognized by

the Colorado Workforce Development Council, will be included in CTE and overall matriculation rates calculations.

• On-Track Growth (Forthcoming): While not currently included in the performance framework reports, it is a required performance indicator for inclusion in annually-determined school and district rating calculations: "Student academic growth to standards, based on students' progress toward meeting the state standards... or for students who meet grade-level expectations on the state standards, progress toward higher levels of achievement, if available, as measured by the statewide assessments." 22-11-204(1)(a)(III). This statutory requirement has led to the development of an On-Track Growth metric that measures whether a student is making enough growth to move towards grade level expectations. In fall 2019, the State Board of Education voted to include On Track Growth as a separate performance indicator for elementary and middle schools no sooner than the 2021 performance framework report release for information and 2022 for points. Inclusion of On Track Growth in the high school and district performance frameworks were scheduled for state board discussion throughout 2020.

Based on State identified measures and metrics, districts receive a rating on each Performance Indicator that evaluates if they exceeded, met, approached or did not meet the state's expectations. These Performance Indicators are then combined for an overall evaluation of a district's performance. Additionally, districts are accountable for meeting minimum participation rates in the state assessments. If a district does not make the 95% participation rate requirement in two or more content areas (English language arts, Math, and Science), then the district's plan type will be lowered by one level. Parents who chose to excuse their students from state assessments are not factored into participation calculations, per state board ruling. *See Appendix D for a sample District Performance Framework (DPF)*. For more information about the DPF, see:

http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/PerformanceFrameworks.asp.

Annual Accreditation Process

On or around mid- to late- August of each school year, based on objective analysis, the Department will determine whether each district exceeds, meets, approaches, or does not meet state expectations for attainment on the key Performance Indicators. At that time, the Department also will consider each district's compliance with the requirements specified in that district's accreditation contract. Taking into account information concerning attainment on the Performance Indicators and compliance with the accreditation contract, the Department will initially assign each district to one of the following accreditation categories:

- Accredited with Distinction the district meets or exceeds state expectations for attainment on the Performance Indicators and is required to adopt and implement a Performance plan;
- Accredited the district meets state expectations for attainment on the Performance Indicators and is required to adopt and implement a Performance plan;
- Accredited with Improvement Plan the district has not met state expectations for attainment on the Performance Indicators and is required to adopt and implement an Improvement plan;
- Accredited with Priority Improvement Plan the district has not met state expectations for attainment on the Performance Indicators and is required to adopt and implement a Priority Improvement plan;

• Accredited with Turnaround Plan- the district has not met state expectations for attainment on the Performance Indicators and is required to adopt, with the commissioner's approval, and implement a Turnaround plan.

Additionally, districts with low participation rates (regardless of the reason) of less than 95% will be noted in their district accreditation—as "Low Participation." Similarly, districts that have participation rates above 95% in two or more content areas will receive a descriptor of "Meets Participation" along with their accreditation rating.

By mid- to late- August of each school year, the Department will provide each district with a District Performance Framework Report. See Appendix D for a sample District Performance Framework Report, with an initial accreditation assignment.

Submission of the District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form

If a district *agrees* with the Department's preliminary assignment of a district accreditation category, a district must submit the <u>District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form</u> no later than mid-October annually indicating the local school board and superintendent agree with the assigned district accreditation rating.

If a district disagrees with the Department's initial assignment of a district accreditation category, a district may submit additional information for the Department's consideration. The district must submit the District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form no later than on or about mid-September indicating an intent to submit a request to reconsider. Final submissions for a request for reconsideration are due within eight weeks of receiving notice of the Department's initial accreditation assignment which is on or about mid-October annually. If interested in participating in the request to reconsider process, districts are highly encouraged to submit a draft request to reconsider submission within four weeks of receiving notice of the Department's initial accreditation assignment which is on or about mid-September annually for CDE staff to provide technical assistance. CDE is unable to provide any follow-up or clarification to requests received more than four weeks after receiving notice of the Department's initial accreditation assignment. The Department will only consider requests that would result in a different district accreditation category than the one initially assigned – an adjustment in the performance framework points will not be made. Submissions should make a compelling case to change an accreditation category based on information that the Department does not already have or has not considered. The Department will consider the full body of evidence presented in the request and in the district's performance framework report and review it on a case-by-case basis. For more information about how to submit additional information for reconsideration, including dates and deadlines, see the guidance documents posted online at:

http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/RequestToReconsider.asp.

Final Accreditation Categories

No later than the December State Board of Education meeting, the Department shall determine a final accreditation category for each district and shall notify the district of the accreditation category to which it has been assigned.

Districts Accredited with Priority Improvement Plans or Turnaround Plans can find additional details concerning the accountability process and requirements in the Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement available at: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/accountability_clock</u>.

ESSA District Accountability Measures

NOTE ON ESSA DISTRICT ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES FOR THE 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

- Schools identified for Comprehensive (CS) or Targeted Support (TS) and Improvement, under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), will maintain their 2019 identification category, except for TS schools identified in 2017 or 2018 that have met the district's exit criteria.
- Schools on the 2019 ESSA identification list (both CS and TS) or through the state accountability clock will continue to be eligible for supports and funding through the EASI grants in 2020-2021. Continue to work with your assigned support coordinator.

Title IA Accountability

The primary federal education legislation governing school and district accountability is the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), which has undergone several reauthorizations, the most recent being the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA). Under ESSA, the department is required to identify schools for improvement and support as Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CS), Targeted (TS), or Additional Targeted (ATS) Support and Improvement¹. Districts are not identified under ESSA; however, they are accountable for their schools identified as CS and TS/ATS.

Each CS school within the district must develop, in consultation with stakeholders, the district, and the department, an improvement plan as part of the UIP process that meets ESSA requirements, as defined in the <u>ESSA Improvement Plan Requirements Rubric</u>. The requirements are also integrated into the <u>School Quality Criteria</u> along with other state and federal planning requirements. Broadly stated, the plan must be developed in partnership with stakeholders, include at least one evidence-based intervention that meets the ESSA tiers I, II, or III criteria, be informed by student performance that resulted in the schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA, and be based on a school-level needs assessment. The plan must be reviewed and approved by the school, district, and state. For CS and ATS schools, the district must also have a process for assessing, identifying, and addressing any inequities between resources allocated to CS or ATS schools and other schools in the district. The state is also required to monitor implementation of approved plans.

Districts must review, approve, and monitor TS school improvement plans and determine the duration of TS identification, exit criteria, and any additional action necessary if performance does not improve for the student group(s) that triggered the school's identification for support and improvement. Schools may use the UIP to document TS requirements. The district UIP must describe the district's process for reviewing, approving, and monitoring UIPs of identified schools.

Under ESSA, all districts are required to prepare and disseminate annual report cards to inform families and the community about school performance, particularly those identified as CS or TS/ATS. LEA report

¹ See the school accountability section for the process used to identify schools for improvement under ESSA.

cards must include performance on long-term and interim accountability indicators, including academic achievement and growth, the progress of English learners toward English proficiency, and graduation and dropout rates. District and school information must be presented for all students and disaggregated groups, and compared to state-level data. The report card must name and include the reasons why schools were identified for federal support and improvement. Districts may link to CDE's ESSA Local Reports webpage to meet this requirement.

Title IIA Accountability

Districts are no longer required to report information on highly qualified teachers; the federal definition of "highly qualified" has been replaced with Colorado teacher licensure requirements. Under ESSA, the focus shifted from holding districts accountable for having highly qualified teachers to ensuring lowincome and minority students are provided equitable access to effective, experienced, and in-field teachers, principals, and other school leaders. CDE calculates the rates at which teachers in schools with the highest proportions of poor and minority students are designated ineffective, out-of-field, or inexperienced, compared to schools with the lowest proportions of poor and minority students, and identifies districts that must implement plans to reduce the identified gap(s). Plans must directly address the root causes of the identified gaps and provide for a more equitable distribution of effective, experienced, and in-field teachers. More detailed information regarding expectations for these plans, as well as relevant data, can be found on CDE's Equitable Distribution of Teachers webpage.

Although accountability sanctions under Title IIA were discontinued, Title IA requires districts to report the professional qualifications of teachers (i.e., number and percentage of inexperienced teachers, principals, and other school leaders; teachers with emergency or provisional credentials; and those teaching in a subject or field for which they are not certified or licensed) to CDE and in their LEA report cards.

Title IIIA Accountability

While ESSA calls for equitable supports and opportunities for English learners (ELs), it has shifted stateand district-level accountability requirements from Title IIIA to Title IA. Colorado's ESSA plan includes indicators and targets for the English language development and proficiency of ELS as well as indicators and targets for meeting academic growth and proficiency.

Districts report the numbers and percentages of ELs served by Title III programs and activities, how many are making progress toward English proficiency, attaining English proficiency, exiting EL services based on attaining English proficiency, and meeting academic standards for four years (Monitored Years 1 and 2, Exited Years 1 and 2) after exiting Title III services. Districts report the number and percentage of ELs who attain English proficiency within five years of initial classification, as well as the number and percentage of ELs who do not. Districts are also required to report the language instruction educational programs being offered by the district. For training resources, please visit:

District Accountability Committees

Both state and federal accountability place great emphasis on including families in the accountability process. While state statute requires the formation of accountability committees, these committees can be activated to help meet many of the ESSA expectations as well (e.g., stakeholder engagement in the planning and implementation process under school improvement). Regardless of the structure, parents are expected to be engaged in meaningful consultation in accountability and improvement planning. Furthermore, schools and districts are expected to report school data and document plans in a transparent manner.

Composition of Committees

Each local school board is responsible for either appointing or creating a process for electing the members of a District Accountability Committee (DAC). DACs must consist of the following, at a minimum:

- Three parents of students enrolled in the district²;
- One teacher employed by the district;
- One school administrator employed by the district; and
- One person involved in business in the community within district boundaries.

A person may not be appointed or elected to fill more than one of these required member positions in a single term. If the local school board chooses to increase the number of persons on the DAC, it must ensure that the number of parents appointed or elected exceeds the number of representatives from the group with the next highest representation.

To the extent practicable, the local school board must ensure that the parents appointed reflect the student populations significantly represented within the district. Such student populations might include, for example, members of non-Caucasian races, students eligible for free or reduced-cost lunch, students whose dominant language is not English, migrant children, children with disabilities and students identified as gifted.

A local school board that *appoints* DAC members should, to the extent practicable, ensure that at least one of the parents has a student enrolled in a charter school authorized by the board (if the board has authorized any charter schools) and ensure that at least one person appointed to the committee has demonstrated knowledge of charter schools.

DACs must select one of their parent representatives to serve as chair or co-chair. Local school boards will establish the length of the term for DAC chair/co-chairs.

If a DAC vacancy arises, the remaining members of the DAC will fill the vacancy by majority action.

² Note: Generally, a parent who is an employee of the district or spouse, son, daughter, sister, brother, mother or father of an employee is not eligible to serve on a DAC. However, such an individual may serve as a parent on the DAC if the district makes a good faith effort but is unable to identify a sufficient number of eligible parents who are willing to serve on the DAC.

District Accountability Committee Responsibilities

Each DAC is responsible for the following:

- Recommending to its local school board priorities for spending school district moneys;
- Submitting recommendations to the local school board concerning preparation of the district's Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan (whichever is applicable);
- Reviewing any charter school applications received by the local school board and, if the local school board receives a charter school renewal application and upon request of the district and at the DAC's option, reviewing any renewal application prior to consideration by the local school board;
- At least annually, cooperatively determining, with the local school board, areas and issues, in addition to budget issues, the DAC shall study and make recommendations upon;
- Providing input and recommendations to principals, on an advisory basis, concerning the development and use of assessment tools to measure and evaluate student academic growth as it relates to teacher evaluations.
- For districts receiving ESSA funds, consulting with all required stakeholders with regard to federally funded activities; and
- Publicizing opportunities to serve and soliciting parents to serve on the DAC (small rural districts may waive this requirement);
- Assisting the district in implementing the district's family engagement policy small rural districts may waive this state requirement; it should be noted that districts accepting Title I funds must still meet the Title I requirement in adopting a districtwide parent involvement policy); and
- Assisting school personnel to increase family engagement with educators, including families' engagement in creating READ plans, Individual Career and Academic Plans, and plans to address habitual truancy (small rural districts may waive this requirement).
- Meet at least quarterly to discuss whether school district leadership, personnel, and infrastructure are advancing or impeding implementation of the school district's performance, improvement, priority improvement or turnaround plan, whichever is applicable, or other progress pertinent to the school district's accreditation contract.

Whenever the DAC recommends spending priorities, it must make reasonable efforts to consult, in a substantive manner, the SACs in the district. Likewise, in preparing recommendations for and advising on the district plan, the DAC must make reasonable efforts to consult in a substantive manner with the SACs and must submit to the local school board the *school* Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement and Turnaround plans submitted by the SACs. To be consistent with SAC responsibilities, CDE recommends that DACs meet at least quarterly to discuss whether district leadership, personnel, and infrastructure are advancing or impeding implementation of the district's Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan (whichever is applicable).

The Educator Evaluation and Support Act (S.B. 10-191) authorized DACs to recommend assessment tools used in the district to measure and evaluate academic growth, as they relate to teacher evaluations. This should not in any way interfere with a district's compliance with the statutory requirements of the Teacher Employment, Compensation and Dismissal Act.

Developing and Submitting District Improvement Plans

NOTE ON SUBMITTING DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

- The April 15, 2020, deadline for public posting of Unified Improvement Plans (UIPs) was extended to May 15, 2020. For districts that needed more time, the state board approved amended state rules to enable plan submissions by October 15, 2020. The state board is considering moving the public posting deadline for all districts and schools to October 15 beginning in the 2021-2022 school year. See more details and provide feedback here: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/timeline-shift</u>
- The 2020-21 UIP process will resume with the typical timeline (e.g., January 15, April 15), except for those districts using the 2019 flexibility which will submit in October. Schools and districts may view their own customized due dates within the online UIP (pre-populated report).
- Without state level data, improvement planning may need to emphasize other areas in the interim (e.g., local data, non-assessment data, root cause analysis, action planning, progress monitoring).
- Training and supports will continue to be available upon request via phone and webinar through the remainder of the school year. Support opportunities are listed here: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/uip_training</u>.

Requirements for District Plans

All districts must submit a plan that addresses how the district will improve its performance through the UIP Online System.³

In 2008, Colorado introduced the Unified Improvement Plan to streamline the improvement planning components of state and federal accountability requirements. This approach has enabled the state to shift from planning as an "event" to planning as a frame for "continuous improvement." Most importantly, this process reduces the number of separate improvement plans schools and districts are required to complete with the intent of creating a single plan that has true meaning for stakeholders. With continued implementation, the UIP process has taken on multiple functions, including the following:

³ In 2016, Colorado legislature expanded biennial (every other year) UIP submission to districts that are Accredited or Accredited with Distinction. Visit <u>https://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/hb_16_1440_flexibility_in_uip_submission</u> for more information.

Alignment	A system to align improvement planning requirements for state and federal accountability into a single plan.
Documentation	A common format for schools and districts to document improvement planning efforts. Schools/districts on the accountability clock must demonstrate a coherent plan for dramatic changed and adjustments over time. Reviews conducted by CDE and the State Review Panel.
Transparency	A process for including multiple voices, including staff, families and community representatives. Plans are also posted publicly.
Best Practice	A statewide strategy to promote improvement planning based on best practice, including use of state and local data and engagement in a continuous improvement cycle.
Supports	A mechanism for triggering additional supports through CDE (especially for schools/districts on the accountability clock).

Considering the requirements of state and federal accountability, CDE created a process that relies on thorough data analyses to inform the action plan. The online UIP system contains a pre-populated report that includes the district's state and federal expectations; how the district performed on those expectations; and any required components based on those expectations.

The Big Five

The "Big Five" are guiding questions that outline the major concepts of the improvement planning process. The questions build upon each other and facilitate alignment across the entire plan. To create coherence and enforce the importance of aligning all elements of the improvement plan, CDE has organized most major guidance documents by the Big Five:



Does the plan:

- 1 Investigate the most critical performance areas and prioritize the most urgent performance challenges?
- 2 Identify root causes that explain the magnitude of the performance challenges?
- 3 Identify evidence-based major improvement strategies that have likelihood to eliminate the root causes?
- Present a well-designed action plan for implementing the major improvement strategies to bring about dramatic improvement?
- 5 Include elements that effectively monitor the impact and progress of the action plan?

Appropriate Strategies

District UIPs are expected to portray actions at the appropriate level of scope and intensity depending on the specific district's accreditation category. In particular, districts Accredited with a Priority Improvement or Turnaround Plan must select major improvement strategies that will result in dramatic outcomes for students. Furthermore, districts Accredited with a Turnaround Plan must, at a minimum, include one or more required turnaround strategies, as defined by law.

For more detailed information on the unique requirements for districts Accredited with a Priority Improvement or Turnaround Plan, refer to the Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement available on the Accountability Clock website

<u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/accountability_clock</u>. For additional information about how to develop plans that will meet state and federal requirements, visit the UIP website: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/uip/uip-online-system</u>.

Review of District Unified Improvement Plans

Upon notification of the district's accreditation category, the DAC should advise the local school board concerning the preparation and contents of the type of plan required by the district's accreditation category (Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan, as applicable). As improvement planning is on a continuous cycle, districts should be reviewing and adjusting the existing improvement plan continually throughout the year. Typically, districts begin revising the UIP in late spring or summer based upon local assessment data. As state-level data is made available each fall, schools and districts can validate conclusions drawn from local data or make broader revisions. The plan must cover at least two academic years (the current school year and the next).

Certain district-level UIPs may be reviewed at the state level for program requirements. These programs include: Gifted Education, READ Act and Title I.

For additional information on the unique requirements for districts with a Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan type, refer to the Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement at <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/</u> for more detailed information.

Accrediting Schools and Assigning School Plan Types

NOTE ON ACCREDITING SCHOOLS AND ASSIGNING SCHOOL PLAN TYPES FOR THE 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

For all schools and districts

- District and school plan types will continue to implement their 2019 ratings for the 2020-2021 school year. See the next section for an explanation of the hold process for schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA.
- Districts and schools (including alternative education campuses) will not receive a 2020 performance framework, nor updated plan types. Preliminary and final reports will not be available.
- The request to reconsider process will not be available in 2020-21.
- For districts with new schools that did not receive a plan type in 2019, the department is currently working on a process. Check with the Accountability Analytics Office for more information.

For schools and districts on Performance Watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch)

- Districts on Improvement or Performance Watch and districts with schools that have received directed action from the State Board of Education received their updated accreditation contracts in summer 2020. Contracts for all other districts were automatically rolled over.
- In addition to retaining the 2019 plan type, schools and districts on Performance Watch (i.e., Priority Improvement, Turnaround, On Watch) will also retain their Performance Watch year without advancing (e.g., a school on Year 4 of the accountability clock in 2019-20 will remain on Year 4 in 2020-21).
- The State Board of Education will not hold any clock hearings in 2020-21 unless the district opts for early action. This includes sites in year 4 that were preparing for hearings in 2020-21, as well as sites that have had previously directed action and were scheduled to reappear before the board. Districts that opt for early action will be prioritized for a State Review Panel visit when they resume.

All adjustments to this year's frameworks are reflective of state assessment and statutory requirement changes. The <u>Accountability Work Group</u> and the <u>Technical Advisory Panel</u> for Longitudinal Growth collaborate with the Colorado Department of Education each year to inform how adjustments are incorporated into performance frameworks. A summary of the final changes, along with information about anticipated future changes resulting from legislative action can be found here: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/performanceframeworksresources.</u>

NOTE ON THE COVID-19 POLICY IMPLICATIONS STAKEHOLDER GROUP IN 2020-21 SCHOOL YEAR

While the department will continue to work with the Accountability Work Group and the Technical Advisory Panel throughout 2020-21, the legislature tasked the commissioner with creating a stakeholder group. Referred to as the COVID-19 Policy Implications Stakeholder Group, the group has the responsibility of providing recommendations to the state on how to address issues related to the impact of COVID-19 on state assessments, accountability, accreditation, and educator evaluation. More information is available at: http://www.cde.state.co.us/safeschools/covid-stakeholder-group

Accreditation of Public Schools

Districts are responsible for accrediting their schools in a manner that emphasizes attainment on the statewide Performance Indicators (i.e., achievement, growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness) and may, at the local school board's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the district. In addition, the Department will review the performance of each public school annually and the State Board will assign to each school the type of plan it will be responsible for implementing.

Each year, the following process takes place:

Based on an objective analysis of attainment on the key Performance Indicators, the Department will determine whether each school exceeds, meets, approaches, or does not meet state expectations on each of the Performance Indicators, as well as whether the school meets the assessment participation and administration requirements. The Department will formulate an initial recommendation as to whether the each school should implement a Performance Plan, an Improvement Plan, a Priority Improvement Plan or a Turnaround Plan. At that time, the Department will provide to each district the data used to analyze the school's performance and the Department's initial recommended plan type the school should implement. *See Appendix E for sample School Performance Framework Reports, with initial plan assignments.*

Submission of the District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form

If a district *agrees* with the Department's preliminary assignment of a school plan type(s), a district must submit the <u>District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form</u> no later than mid-October annually indicating the local school board and superintendent agree with the assigned school plan type(s).

If a district *disagrees* with the Department's initial school plan type assignment for any of its schools, a district may submit additional information for the Department's consideration. The district must submit the District and School Accreditation and Request to Reconsider Form no later than mid-September indicating an intent to submit a request to reconsider. Final submissions for a request for reconsideration due within eight weeks of receiving notice of the Department's initial recommendation for the type of plan the public school shall implement which is on or about mid-October annually. If the district chooses to participate in the request to reconsider process, they are highly encouraged to submit a draft request to reconsider within four weeks of receiving notice of the Department's initial recommendation for the type of plan the public school shall implement which is on or about mid-September, for CDE staff to provide technical assistance. CDE is unable to provide technical assistance to requests received more than four weeks after receiving notice of the Department's initial recommendation for the type of plan the public school shall implement. The Department will only consider requests that would result in a school plan type different from the one initially assigned – an adjustment in the performance framework points will not be made. Submissions should make a compelling case to change a school's plan type based on information that the Department does not already have or has not considered. The Department will consider the full body of evidence presented

in the request and in the school's performance framework report, and review it on a case-by-case basis. For more information about how to submit accreditation categories and additional information for consideration, including date and deadlines, see the policy guidance posted online at: http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/RequestToReconsider.asp.

Final School Plan Type Determinations

No later than the December State Board of Education Meeting, the Department will formulate a final recommendation as to which type of plan each school should implement. This recommendation will take into account both the results reported on the School Performance Framework report and additional information submitted by the district. The Department will submit its final recommendation to the State Board along with any conflicting recommendation provided by the district. By December, the State Board will make a final determination regarding the type of plan each school shall implement, and each school's plan assignment will be published on SchoolView.

Priority Improvement and Turnaround schools can find additional details concerning their accountability requirements and opportunities for support in the Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement, available at: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/accountability_clock</u>.

School Performance Framework

In conducting its annual review of each school's performance, the Department will consider the school's results on the School Performance Framework. In a typical year, the School Performance Framework measures a school's attainment on the key Performance Indicators identified in the Education Accountability Act of 2009 (article 11 of title 22):

- Academic Achievement: The Academic Achievement Indicator reflects how students are doing at meeting the state's proficiency goal, based on mean scale scores and percentile ranks of schools on Colorado's standardized assessments. This Indicator includes results from CMAS English language arts; CMAS mathematics; Colorado Spanish language arts (ACCESS); CMAS science; PSAT 9 & 10 and the alternate DLM/CoAlt assessments. Performance is determined overall by content area, as well as by disaggregated student groups. Disaggregated groups include English learners, free/reduced price lunch eligible, minority students, and students with disabilities.
- Academic Growth: The Academic Growth Indicator reflects academic progress using the Colorado Growth Model. This Indicator reflects normative (median) growth: how the academic progress of the students in the school compared to that of other students statewide with a similar content proficiency score history or similar English language proficiency (ACCESS) score history. As is the case with the achievement indicator, results are calculated at both the overall level and for disaggregated student groups.
- Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness: The Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness Indicator reflects student preparedness for college or careers upon completing high school. This indicator reflects student graduation rates, disaggregated graduation rates for historically disadvantaged students (free/reduced price lunch eligible, minority students, students with disabilities, English learners), dropout rates, Colorado SAT mean scale scores, and matriculation rates that represent the percent of high school graduates that go on to CTE programs, community colleges, or 4-year institutions. Additionally, for a second year,

industry credentials where provided by school districts as recognized by the Colorado Workforce Development Council, will be included in CTE and overall matriculation rates calculations.

On-Track Growth (Forthcoming): While not currently included in the performance framework reports, it is a required performance indicator for inclusion in annually-determined school and district rating calculations: "Student academic growth to standards, based on students' progress toward meeting the state standards... or for students who meet grade-level expectations on the state standards, progress toward higher levels of achievement, if available, as measured by the statewide assessments." 22-11-204(1)(a)(III). This statutory requirement has led to the development of an On-Track Growth metric that measures whether a student is making enough growth to move towards grade level expectations. In fall 2019, the State Board of Education voted to include On Track Growth as a separate performance indicator for elementary and middle schools no sooner than the 2021 performance framework report release for information and 2022 for points. Inclusion of On Track Growth in the high school and district performance frameworks were scheduled for state board discussion throughout 2020.

Based on state-identified measures and metrics, schools receive a rating on each of these Performance Indicators that reflects if they exceeded, met, approached, or did not meet the state's expectations. These performance indicators are then combined to arrive at an overall evaluation of school performance. Additionally, schools are accountable for meeting minimum participation rates on the state assessments. If a school does not make the 95 percent participation rate requirement in two or more content areas (English language arts, math, and science) the plan type will be lowered one level. Parents who chose to excuse their students from state assessments are not factored into participation calculations, per state board ruling.

Additionally, schools with low participation rates (regardless of the reason) of less than 95% will be noted in their district accreditation— as "Low Participation." Similarly, districts that have participation rates above 95% in two or more content areas will receive a descriptor of "Meets Participation" along with their accreditation rating.

See Appendix E for a sample School Performance Framework (SPF). For more information about the SPF, see: <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/PerformanceFrameworks.asp</u>.

ESSA School Accountability Measures

NOTE ON ESSA SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES FOR THE 2020-21

- Schools identified for Comprehensive (CS) or Targeted Support (TS) and Improvement, under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), will maintain their 2019 identification category, except for TS schools identified in 2017 or 2018 that have met the district's exit criteria. No new schools will be identified or added to the 2019 ESSA identification list.
- Schools on the 2019 ESSA identification list (both CS and TS) or through the state accountability clock will continue to be eligible for supports and funding through the EASI grants in 2020-2021.

ESSA Identification for Support and Improvement. Under ESSA, state accountability systems must incorporate the following five indicators, calculated for all students and separately for English learners (ELs), students with disabilities (SWDs), economically disadvantaged students (in Colorado, qualifying for free or reduced meals, FRM), and major racial and ethnic groups:

- Academic achievement: Based on CMAS and CoAlt mean scale scores for English language arts (and Spanish language arts for eligible 3rd and 4th graders) and math, and SAT mean scale scores for math and evidence-based reading and writing. Under ESSA, schools are required to assess at least 95 percent of students on the state assessments. Non-participants (including parent excusals) in excess of 5 percent must be counted as non-proficient and assigned the lowest possible scale score on the missed assessment. Colorado identifies schools for support and improvement based on actual mean scale scores first, then runs a second round of identifications based on participation-adjusted mean scale scores.
- Academic progress: Based on median growth percentiles for CMAS English language arts and math, and SAT math and evidence-based reading and writing.
- **Graduation rates**: Based on the 4-year and 7-year adjusted cohort rates.
- **Progress in achieving English language proficiency**: Based on WiDA ACCESS for ELLs median growth percentiles and the percent of students on-track to attain fluency within the state-determined timeline.
- Indicators of school quality or student success (SQSS): Based on CMAS/CoAlt science mean scale scores, reduction in chronic absenteeism rates (elementary and middle schools), and dropout rates (high schools). Reduction in chronic absenteeism data will be used beginning in the 2021-22 school year.

States must have a method for identifying schools for Comprehensive (CS), Targeted (TS), and Additional Targeted (ATS) support and improvement based on these indicators and establish long-term goals and measures of interim progress for academic achievement, graduation rates, and progress toward English proficiency. States are also required to identify schools for these categories based on the academic achievement scores being adjusted for non-participants. Therefore, it is possible for a school to be identified for CS or TS, due to participation only.

Although stakeholder input in CDE's process to develop Colorado's ESSA plan favored criteria and methodology that aligned with its state accountability system as much as possible, ESSA statutory

specifications for identification have resulted in schools identified for support and improvement under ESSA that have not been identified under state accountability and vice versa.

For updates and additional information about ESSA identification, visit http://www.cde.state.co.us/fedprograms/essa csi tsi.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement School Identification

Three CS school categories are identified annually based on the following criteria:

- Lowest Performing 5% of Title I Schools. All Title I schools are ranked on a summative index score (total percentage points earned) based on all five ESSA indicators, using aggregated data from the three preceding years. Title I schools performing in the lowest 5% are identified for improvement. One Alternative Education Campus (AEC) will be identified in this category, reflecting the relative percent (5%) of Title I schools that are AECs. If the summative index score does not adequately differentiate the lowest-performing AEC, attendance and truancy data will be included for identification purposes.
- Low Graduation Rates. Colorado identifies all public high schools with 4-year and 7-year graduation rates that are below 67% for three consecutive years for improvement. If the 7-year graduation rate is not available, then only the 4-year graduation rate is used (or vice versa).
- Additional Targeted. Title I schools previously identified for Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATS, see below) that have continued to be low performing for the same disaggregated group(s) for three consecutive⁴ years after identification will be moved to this category in their fourth year of identification. Colorado will identify schools in this category for the first time in 2021-22.

Schools identified as CS will remain in that category for three years, regardless of higher performance, to ensure adequate time to implement improvement strategies and sustain performance before supports are reduced or terminated. Schools that no longer meet identification criteria from the year they were identified will exit CS after the third year. However, a school will not exit CS if it is re-identified as CS while implementing improvement strategies (in years two and three after original identification). For example, a school in the lowest 5% that improves in its second year but then falls back into the lowest 5% in its third year will retain CS identification. See table below for examples.

⁴ Due to the accountability hold, 2020 will not be included when counting the consecutive years.

School	2017-2018 Identification Year	2018-2019 Status	2019-2020 Status	2020-2021 Status	2021-2022 Status	2021-2022 Status
			CS-Lowest 5%	cut score in 17-18 =	= 38%	
A	Summative rating = 33% Identified as CS - lowest 5%	Summative rating = 39% Not re-identified but holds CS status.	Summative rating = 39% Not re-identified but holds CS status.	Accountability Hold – does not impact or count towards the consecutive years of identification	Summative rating = 40% Not re-identified. Exits status and no longer CS.	Summative rating = 40% Not re-identified and continues to be former CS.
В	Summative rating = 33% Identified as CS - Iowest 5%	Summative rating = 33% Re-identified as CS based on cut score for 18-19.	Summative rating = 39% Not re-identified but holds CS status.	Accountability Hold – does not impact or count towards the consecutive years of identification	Summative rating = 40% Not re-identified but holds CS status.	Summative rating = 40% Not re-identified. Exits status and no longer CS.

Targeted Support and Improvement School Identification

TS schools are identified annually, with a subset meeting criteria for Additional Targeted Support and Improvement.

Targeted Support and Improvement (TS). Any school with at least one consistently underperforming disaggregated group (i.e., students receiving free and reduced meals, students from major racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, and English learners). Colorado uses all ESSA indicators, based on three years of aggregate data, to evaluate the performance of all disaggregated groups. Additionally, progress toward English proficiency is used as an indicator as an indicator to evaluate the performance of English learners. Schools are identified, separately for each grade span (elementary, middle, high) if they have at least three indicators for a given student group(s) and earned the lowest rating (does not meet expectations) on all available indicators for that group(s).

Districts are responsible for determining how long a school will remain TS, what criteria will be required to exit TS status, and take district-determined action if the school does not meet the exit criteria within the district-determined timeline.

Additional Targeted Support and Improvement (ATS). Colorado identifies any TS schools with at least one disaggregated group that, on its own, meets the criteria for the lowest 5% of Title I schools as ATS. Schools that have enough students in a disaggregated group to earn a rating on **all** sub-indicators, for all grade-spans served by that school (elementary, middle, high), and earned the lowest rating (does not meet expectations) on all sub-indicators at all grade spans, are identified as ATS.

Any Title I schools that are identified as ATS for three consecutive years for the same student group(s) will move to CS in their fourth year of identification. Due to the accountability hold, Colorado will identify former A-TS schools as CS for the first time in 2020-2021.

ESSA School Improvement Plan Requirements

ESSA requires that schools identified for improvement develop and implement improvement plans in collaboration with stakeholders including, but not limited to, principals, other school leaders, teachers, and parents. CS school plans must be approved by the school, Local Education Agency and CDE. CDE uses the <u>ESSA Improvement Plan Rubric</u> to review and approve CS plans. The federal requirements have been integrated into the <u>School Quality Criteria</u> along with other state and federal planning requirements. Upon approval and implementation, CDE is responsible for monitoring and periodically reviewing CS plans. LEAs will be responsible for reviewing, approving, and monitoring TS plans.

CS plans must be developed within the UIP and must:

- Be developed in consultation with stakeholders
- Be informed by student performance against state-determined long-term goals and address the reasons for identification
- Include evidence-based interventions (EBIs)
- Include school-level needs assessment
- Address resource inequities

TS Plans may be developed within the UIP and must:

- Be developed in consultation with stakeholders
- Be informed by student performance for identified disaggregated group(s) against statedetermined long-term goals
- Include evidence-based interventions (EBIs)
- If ATS, also address resource inequities

For updates and additional information about ESSA improvement planning, visit <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/fedprograms/essaplanningrequirements</u>.

ESSA Planning Requirements	UIP Connection	CS	TS	ATS
LEA ensures a plan is developed with stakeholders (including school leaders, teachers and parents).	Data Narrative – Brief Description	•	•	•
Plan is informed by student performance against state- determined long-term goals (i.e., School Performance Framework).	Data Narrative – Current Performance	*	•	•
Plan includes evidence-based interventions.	Major Improvement Strategy or Action Step	٠	٠	•
Plan is based on a school-level needs assessment.	Data Narrative – Trend Analysis, Priority Performance Challenge, Root Cause Analysis	*		
Plan addresses resource inequities.	Data Narrative – Root Cause Analysis and Action Plan	•		•
School, LEA and SEA must approve plan.	ESSA requirements are documented within the UIP template	•		
Only LEA approves plan prior to implementation.	LEA may choose the format, including the UIP, to document ESSA requirements		•	*
Upon approval and implementation, SEA monitors and periodically reviews plan.	CS schools on accountability clock submit Jan 15. CS schools not on accountability clock submit April 15 for CDE review	•		
LEA monitors and review plan, upon submission and implementation.	LEA sets timeline		٠	•

Summary of CS and TS Improvement Plan Requirements and their Relationship to the UIP

ESSA Grants and Technical Assistance

As a part of Colorado's aligned school improvement efforts, districts with CS or TS/ATS schools have access to a wide array of services and supports, including additional grant dollars through the EASI application. More details can be found at: http://www.cde.state.co.us/fedprograms/easiapplication. CDE staff will continue to work with districts to identify the needs of schools identified for improvement and how federal funds can be more effectively leveraged in support of student achievement.

School Accountability Committees

Composition of Committees

Each school is responsible for establishing a School Accountability Committee (SAC), which should consist of at least the following seven members:

- The principal of the school or the principal's designee;
- One teacher who provides instruction in the school;
- Three parents of students enrolled in the school⁵;
- One adult member of an organization of parents, teachers, and students recognized by the school; and
- One person from the community.

The local school board will determine the actual number of persons on the SAC and the method for selecting members. If the local school board chooses to increase the number of persons on the SAC, it must ensure that the number of parents appointed or elected exceeds the number of representatives from the group with the next highest representation. A person may not be appointed or elected to fill more than one of these required member positions in a single term.

If the local school board determines that members are to be appointed, the appointing authority must, to the extent practicable, ensure that the parents who are appointed reflect the student populations significantly represented within the school. If the local school board determines that the members are to be elected, the school principal must encourage persons who reflect the student populations significantly represented within the school to seek election. Such populations might include, for example, students who are not Caucasian, eligible for free or reduced-cost lunch, whose dominant language is not English, migrant, identified as having disabilities or being gifted.

SACs must select one of their parent representatives to serve as chair or co-chair of the committee. If a vacancy arises on a SAC for any reason, the remaining members will fill the vacancy by majority action.

The members of the governing board of a charter school may serve on the SAC. In a district with 500 or fewer enrolled students, members of the local school board may serve on a SAC, and the DAC may serve as a SAC.

Committee Responsibilities

Each SAC is responsible for the following:

- Making recommendations to the principal on the school priorities for spending school moneys, including federal funds, where applicable;
- Making recommendations to the principal and the superintendent concerning preparation of a school Performance or Improvement plan, if either type of plan is required;

⁵ Note: Generally, a parent who is an employee of the school or who is a spouse, son, daughter, sister, brother, mother or father of an employee is not eligible to serve on a SAC. However, if, after making good-faith efforts, a principal or organization of parents, teachers and students is unable to find a sufficient number of persons willing to serve on the SAC, the principal, with advice from the organization of parents, teachers and students, may establish an alternative membership plan for the SAC that reflects the membership specified above as much as possible.

- Publicizing and holding a SAC meeting to discuss strategies to include in a school Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan, if either type of plan is required, and using this input to make recommendations to the local school board concerning preparation of the school Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan prior to the plan being written;
- Publicizing the district's public hearing to review a written school Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan;
- Meeting at least quarterly to discuss whether school leadership, personnel, and infrastructure are advancing or impeding implementation of the school's Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan, whichever is applicable, and other progress pertinent to the school's accreditation contract;
- Providing input and recommendations to the DAC and district administration, on an advisory basis, concerning principal development plans and evaluations. (Note that this should not in any way interfere with a district's compliance with the statutory requirements of the Teacher Employment, Compensation and Dismissal Act.);
- Publicizing opportunities to serve and soliciting parents to serve on the SAC (small rural districts may waive this requirement);
- Assisting the district in implementing at the school level the district's family engagement policy (small rural districts may waive this requirement); and
- Assisting school personnel to increase family engagement with teachers, including family engagement in creating READ plans, Individual Career and Academic Plans, and plans to address habitual truancy (small rural districts may waive this requirement).

School Accountability Committees for Charter Schools

For information about School Accountability Committees in the charter school context, see Appendix F.

Review of School Improvement Plans

With the availability of local/state data, the principal and superintendent or local school board will begin to collaborate with the SAC to develop the Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround plan, whichever is applicable. The district will determine how to review the plan before it is adopted.

Priority Improvement and Turnaround Plans. For schools required to submit a Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan, local school boards must adopt a plan no later than January 15th of the year in which the school is directed to adopt such a plan. Schools required to submit a Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan have different timelines and review requirements.

For additional information on the unique requirements for schools with a Priority Improvement or Turnaround plan type, refer to the Priority Improvement and Turnaround Supplement. <u>http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability</u>

Performance and Improvement Plans (including Performance or Improvement Plans "On Watch"). For schools required to submit a Performance or Improvement plan, principals and the superintendent, or his/her designee, must submit an adopted plan for public posting no later than April 15th. Local school boards are encouraged to review and approve such plans and to consider in their local policies whether they would like to require school principals and superintendents to submit the plan to the local school board for approval.

Districts will submit all final plans no later than April 15th to CDE for public posting on SchoolView.org. Schools with a Performance plan type assignment are eligible to submit plans biennially.

Performance Reporting

SchoolView

The Colorado Department of Education is responsible for developing and maintaining a web portal, SchoolView, to provide high-quality information about school, district and state performance to public schools, school districts, the Charter School Institute, to parents and other members of the public. SchoolView can be accessed at this link: http://www.cde.state.co.us/schoolview

The following tools and reports are available at the school view web-site at

http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/schoolviewdataandresults including:

A7	ACADEMY: 20 (1040) 110 DAVE, W13 DRVF CB.2040	6 999-01 11 9900		
In your transfert	2017-14 /	lerformance Frac	newurk Results	Ward & Dis Arrithmeter Contractor
Serves Graties K-12	Official Performance Bating		Furformance indic nos dif chalence across antenance transmit	the are distributed particle of the
2017-18 Masheri Development (1)	Accredited with Disti Farticipation		Achievement: Nexts ()	Post-Secondary B Workforce Readines facent
23,044	80.5%			
Jaritheritan.	-			overhi .
Burrer ritk	Tarrent II.M		Reserved Among Streetwood	And Party Statement
and later	What uses the valley week an compose to other shitt	the desite it	Alive de the differen (lactor into the off	n performance todicators (
Parts IR.	2016-	17 Qidfied Improv	wound Plan	When it implies Reprint the stating
Experies an	Performance Outbarget	host Cases (i)	enter to these	prinsementi Stratagine (1) Sindi deveryter herr bern pol (
Ann 175	EA Acharament and Growth	CONTRACTORY IN	alters being had being her	general of functionary and function their Networkshold (high-Specific Universal)
Damage and Property of	that's information and licenses	Instructional Practice Bart Estature Inco		orvalton aft Catalina sinar
Distant Alt	ferrers adament	Uni continues, Clash	lation to many states. La	Lonings, Und Intige \$1 they man







Performance Snapshot

The Performance Snapshot provides an overview of key elements from the most recent District and School Performance Framework Reports and Unified Improvement Plans. This report is primarily designed for users with existing knowledge of the performance frameworks and improvement planning process, but provides a significant amount of explanatory information that may make it accessible to broader audiences.

School and District Dashboards

The Dashboards are made up of a suite of reports that have been designed to support improvement planning efforts by districts and schools. The dashboards allow users to interact with graphs and tables showing demographic information along with performance data and ratings generated under the state accountability system.

Performance Frameworks Reports and UIPs District and School Performance Frameworks are used to determine performance ratings under the state accountability system. Unified Improvement Plans (UIPs) document the strategies that districts and schools implement as part of the continuous improvement cycle. Go here to access reports for individual districts and schools in PDF format.

Term	Definition
Academic Achievement	A proficiency score on an assessment. Achievement for an individual is expressed as
Or	a test (scale) score or as an achievement level.
Achievement	Academic achievement is a performance indicator used to evaluate schools and
	districts in Colorado. Colorado uses the average score, or mean scale score, to
	measure achievement.
Academic Growth	For an individual student, academic growth is the progress shown by the student, in
	a given subject area, over a given span of time.
	Academic growth is a performance indicator used to evaluate schools and districts
	in Colorado.
Academic Peers	Students currently in the same grade, being tested in the same subject, with a
	similar achievement score history in that subject. For the Colorado Growth Model,
	these are a particular student's comparison group when interpreting his/her student
	growth percentile.
ACCESS for ELLs	ACCESS for ELLs (Assessing Comprehension and Communication in English State-to-
	State for English Language Learners) is a secure large-scale English proficiency
	assessment for K-12 th graders identified as English learners (ELs). The assessment
	measures student achievement in reading, writing, speaking, and listening
	comprehension standards in English.
Achievement Level	Descriptions of score levels on an assessment, using ranges of scores, separated by
	cut-points. On the CMAS assessments, for example, the five achievement levels are:
	1-did not yet meet expectations, 2-partially met expectations, 3-approached
	expectations, 4-met expectations, and 5-exceeded expectations.
Accountability	Refers to the number of consecutive years a school/district is permitted to remain in
Clock/Performance	the two lowest accountability categories (Priority Improvement and Turnaround).
Watch	Also referred to as the 5-year-clock.
	Note: In 2019, the term "Performance Watch" will replace the term Accountability
	Clock. A school or district in Priority improvement or Turnaround (PI/T) is on
	performance watch. After receiving two consecutive PI/T ratings, a school or district
	must receive an Improvement rating or higher for two consecutive years to exit
	performance watch. After five years of consecutive or nonconsecutive PI/T ratings
	while on performance watch, the state board must direct the school, district or
	Institute to take one of the actions, or pathways, outlined in statute.
	More details, including actions directed by the State Board of Education at the end
	of the Accountability Clock, are detailed in the Priority Improvement and
	Turnaround Supplement to the Accountability Handbook.
Action Step	Something done to make progress toward goals. Action steps are created for each
	strategy and identify resources (people, time, money) that will be brought to bear
	so that goals and targets can be reached. This is a component of the UIP process.
Additional Targeted	School identified for support and improvement under the Every Student Succeeds
Support (ATS)	Act (ESSA) based on having at least one student group performing in the lowest 5%
	for that student group.
	If the school does not exit this category within 3 years of identification and is
	supported with Title IA funds, the school would become comprehensive support and
	improvement under ESSA.

Appendix A: Colorado Educational Accountability System Terminology

Term	Definition
Average	A summary of a collection of numbers, calculated by adding all of the numbers together and dividing by how many numbers were in the collection. Also known as the mean. See also: <i>Mean</i>
Baseline	The initial value of a metric against which future values are compared to determine if progress is being made toward goals.
CoAlt: ELA and Math (DLM)	Colorado Alternate Assessment: ELA and Math Dynamic Learning Maps (DLM) is the standards-based assessment used to measure academic content knowledge in English Language Arts and Mathematics for students with significant cognitive disabilities.
The Colorado Growth Model	The Colorado Growth Model is a statistical model to calculate each student's progress on state assessments. The Colorado Growth Model expresses annual growth, for an individual, with a student growth percentile in language arts, mathematics and English proficiency. For a school, district, or other relevant student grouping, student growth is summarized using the median of the student growth percentiles for that grouping.
Colorado Measures of Academic Success (CMAS)	Colorado's assessments created to measure the Colorado Academic Standards. They include assessments in ELA, math, science and social studies.
Colorado SAT, PSAT10, PSAT09	Colorado has given a college entrance exam each spring to all 11th graders enrolled in public schools since 2001. All Colorado 9 th graders are administered the PSAT09; 10 th graders are administered the PSAT10; and all 11 th graders have the opportunity to take the SAT. These assessment results are used in the accountability system.
Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CS)	 Schools that are identified for support and improvement under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), based on one of the 3 following categories: Performing in the lowest 5% of Title I schools; Having a graduation rate below 67%; or Having at least one chronically underperforming student group.
Consolidated Application [ESEA]	Colorado's grant application process for LEAs to apply for ESEA (also known as ESSA) funds.
Cut-Score Or Cut-Point	The number required for a school or district to attain a particular level of performance on the performance framework reports. The cut-point for each performance indicator level is defined on the performance framework scoring guide.
Disaggregated Group	A demographic group of students. Colorado reports student academic growth, on the performance framework reports, for four historically disadvantaged student groups: students eligible for free/reduced cost meals, minority students, students with disabilities, and English learners. Additional information is reported by race, ethnicity, gender, and gifted.
Disaggregated Graduation Rate	Graduation rates are disaggregated by student groups. On the performance framework reports, disaggregated groups include students eligible for free/reduced cost lunch, minority students, students with disabilities, and English language learners. See also: <i>Graduation Rate</i>
District Performance Framework (DPF)	The framework with which the state evaluates the level to which districts meet the state's expectations for attainment on the performance indicators, and makes an accreditation level determination.

Term	Definition
Drop-Out Rate	The Colorado dropout rate is an <u>annual</u> rate, reflecting the percentage of all students enrolled in grades 7-12 who leave school during a single year, without subsequently attending another school or educational program. It is calculated by dividing the number of dropouts by a membership base, which includes all students who were in membership any time during the year. District Performance Frameworks use the grades 7-12 rate. School Performance Frameworks only include dropout rate at the high school level (grades 9-12).
ELs	English learners – includes FEP, NEP, and LEP students.
Equitable Distribution of Teachers (EDT)	The requirement in ESSA that LEAs examine and address the degree to which inexperienced, ineffective, and out-of-field teachers are more likely assigned to teach low-income and minority students. EDT analyses are conducted and posted on the <u>CDE website</u> .
ESSA	Every Student Succeeds Act, the version of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) reauthorized in 2015.
ESSA Indicators	 The performance of all students, English learners (ELs), students with disabilities, students of poverty, and students from major races and ethnic groups are evaluated on the following indicators as a part of the ESSA identification process: English language arts (ELA) achievement and growth Math achievement and growth English language proficiency (of ELs only) Graduation rates (of high school students only) School Quality and Student Success Indicator, in Colorado defined as Science achievement, Reduction in Chronic Absenteeism for elementary and middle school (data will be used beginning in the 2020-2021 school year), and Drop-out rates for high schools.
FELL (Former English Language Learner)	Students that have been formally exited from an English language development program for more than two years.
Fluent English Proficient (FEP)	This is the highest level of English proficiency designations for English learners, and split into four sub-designations: FEP, Monitor Year 1; FEP Monitor Year 2; FEP Exited Year 1; FEP, Exited Year 2. Students at this level are able to understand and communicate effectively with various audiences, on a wide range of familiar and new topics, to meet social and academic demands in English. They are able to score comparably, in content areas, to native speakers, but may still need some linguistic support. Compare to: <i>NEP, LEP</i>
Framework Points	The point values schools/districts can earn on each performance indicator included in the SPFs/DPFs. Framework points define the relative weighting of each performance indicator within the overall framework. They can be directly understood as percentage weights of the indicators when the school or district has data on all three indicators. For elementary and middle level schools only, framework points possible are: 40 for Academic Achievement and 60 for Academic Growth. For high schools and districts with high school levels, framework points possible are: 30 for Academic Achievement, 40 for Academic Growth, and 30 for Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness. When a school/district does not have sufficient data to calculate a score on a particular performance indicator, the remaining indicators are used, and their weighted contributions change.
Term	Definition
-------------------------------------	--
Framework Score	The sum of the framework points a school or district earns on all performance indicators on the school/district performance framework. The framework score determines a school plan type or a district accreditation category.
Graduation Rate	Colorado calculates "on-time" graduation as the percent of students who graduate from high school within 4 years of entering 9 th grade. A student is assigned a graduating class when they enter 9 th grade, and the graduating class is assigned by adding 4 years to the year the student enters 9 th grade. The formula anticipates that a student entering 9 th grade in fall 2016 will graduate with the Class of 2020. On the 1-year District/School Performance Framework reports, districts/schools earn points based on the highest value among the following graduation rates: 4- year, 5-year, 6-year, and 7-year. For District/School Performance Framework reports, the "best of" graduation rate is bolded and italicized on the Performance Indicators detail page.
Growth Percentile	See Student Growth Percentile.
Improvement Plan	The Educational Accountability Act of 2009 requires all schools and districts in Colorado to implement one of four plan types: Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, or Turnaround. Districts that earn 44% - 55.9% of their DPF points or schools that earn 42% - 52.9% of their SPF points will be assigned to the "Improvement Plan" category.
Implementation Benchmark	A measure (with associated metric) used to assess the degree to which action steps have been implemented. This is a component of the UIP process. See also: <i>Measure</i> and <i>Metric</i>
Interim Measure	A measure (and associated metric) used to assess student performance at various times during a school year. This is a component of the UIP process.
LEA	Local Educational Agency; this can be a School District, BOCES or the lead school district in a multi-school district consortium.
Limited English Proficient (LEP)	This is the middle English proficiency designation for English learners. LEP students are able to understand and be understood in many to most social communication situations, in English. They are gaining increasing competence in the more cognitively demanding requirements of content areas; however, they are not yet ready to fully participate in academic content areas without linguistic support. Compare to: NEP, FEP
Major Improvement Strategy	An overall approach that describes a series of related maneuvers or actions intended to result in performance improvements. This is a component of the UIP process.
Matriculation Rate	A measure of students that enroll in higher education opportunities following high school. The matriculation rate is a postsecondary workforce readiness sub-indicator in the DPFs/SPFs. It reflects all high school graduates that enroll in a career and technical education program, or 2- or 4-year higher education institution during the summer or fall term following high school graduation.
Mean	A summary measure of a collection of numbers, calculated by adding all of the numbers together and dividing by how many numbers were in the collection (commonly known as the average). See also: Average.

Term	Definition
Measure	Instrument(s) to assess performance in an area identified by an indicator.
Median	A number that summarizes a set of numbers, similar to an average. When a collection of numbers is ordered from smallest to largest, the median is the middle score of the ordered list. The median is therefore the point below which 50 percent of the scores fall. Medians may be more appropriate than averages in particular situations, such as when percentiles are grouped.
Median Student Growth Percentile Or Median Growth Percentile (MGP)	Summarizes student growth by district, school, grade-level, or other group of interest. It is calculated by ordering the individual Student Growth Percentiles of the students in the group of interest and determining the middle score. See also: <i>Median</i>
Metric	A numeric scale indicating the level of some variable of interest. For example, your credit score is a metric that companies use to decide whether to give you a loan.
Non-English Proficient (NEP)	The lowest English proficiency designation, for English learners. NEP students may be just beginning to understand and respond to simple routine communication in English, or they may be beginning to have the ability to respond, with more ease, to a variety of social communication tasks. Compare to: <i>LEP, FEP</i>
Normative Growth	One student's growth understood in comparison to that of similar students. The Colorado Growth Model describes growth, normatively, as how each student's progress compares to other students with a similar achievement history—his/her academic peers.
Participation Rate – Accountability Determination	Percentage of students, in a school/district, taking required state assessments; excluding Parent Excuses and counting NEP EL newcomers not testing in English Language Arts as participants. On the performance frameworks, schools/districts that do not meet the minimum 95% accountability participation rate in two or more subject areas are assigned a plan type one category lower than their framework points indicate.
Participation Rate – Population Representativeness	Percentage of students, in a school/district, taking required state assessments; including: English Language Arts, Math, Science, PSAT, and SAT.
Percentage/Percent	A way of expressing a fraction in a single number. For example, 1 out of 17 is 5.9%.
Percentile	A percentile is a way of showing how a particular score compares with all other scores in a dataset by ranking ranges of scores from 1 to 99. The higher the percentile, the higher ranking the score is among all the other values. Each range of scores represents 1% of the pool of scores. For example, if your vocabulary knowledge is at the 60th percentile for people your age, that means that you are higher in the distribution than 60% of people – in other words, you know more words than 60% of your peers. Conversely, 40% know more words than you do. The percentile is useful because you do not need to know anything about the scales used for particular metrics or tests – if you know that your percentile was the 50 th , you know that your score is right in the middle of all the other scores, an average score.
Performance	General term used to encompass growth and achievement. Used to discuss both student and school level of attainment.

Term	Definition
Performance Indicator	A specific component of school or district quality. Colorado has identified three performance indicators to evaluate all schools and districts in the state: student achievement, student academic growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness.
Performance Plan	The type of plan required for schools that already meet the state's expectations for attainment on the performance indicators. Districts that earn at least 65% of their DPF points or schools that earn at least 53% of their SPF points are assigned to the Performance plan category.
PHLOTE	A data element used to represent students that have a primary or home language other than English.
Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness (PWR)	The preparedness of students for college or a job after completing high school. This is one of the performance indicators used to evaluate the performance of schools and districts in Colorado. This indicator includes graduation, dropout, and matriculation rates and Colorado SAT scores.
Priority Improvement Plan	One of the types of plans required for those schools that do not meet the state's performance standards. Districts that earn 34% - 44%, of their DPF points are assigned to a Priority Improvement Plan category. Schools that earn 34% - 42%, of their SPF points are assigned to a Priority Improvement Plan category.
Priority Performance Challenges (PPC)	Specific statements about the school's or district's student performance challenges, which have been prioritized. (Does not include statements about budgeting, staffing, curriculum, instruction, etc.). This is a component of the Unified Improvement Planning (UIP) process.
Rating	On the performance framework reports, CDE's evaluation of the extent to which the school/district has met the state's standards on the performance indicators and their component parts. The rating levels on the performance framework reports are: Does Not Meet, Approaching, Meets, and Exceeds.
Root Cause	The deepest underlying cause(s) of a problem or situation that, if resolved, would result in elimination or substantial reduction, of the symptom. If action is required, the cause should be within one's ability to control, and not a purely external factor such as poverty that is beyond one's ability to control. This is a component of the UIP process.
SASID	State Assigned Student Identifier Number – the number that Colorado uses to identify students in public schools.
Scale Score	Exact test score - this is considered a measure of student achievement. Such scores are calculated from participants' responses to test questions. On CMAS, students receive a scale score in English language arts, math, science and social studies. See also: Achievement
School Performance Framework (SPF)	The framework used by the state to provide information to stakeholders about each school's performance based on the key performance indicators: student achievement, student academic growth, and postsecondary/workforce readiness. Schools are assigned to a type of improvement plan based on their performance across all indicators.

Term	Definition
School Plan Type	The type of plan to which a school is assigned by the state on the SPF report. The school plan types are: Performance, Improvement, Priority Improvement, and Turnaround. This is also the type of plan that must be adopted and implemented, for the school, by either the local board (Priority Improvement or Turnaround) or the principal and superintendent (Performance or Improvement).
SEA	State Education Agency (Colorado Department of Education)
State Review Panel	A panel of education experts appointed by the commissioner to assist the Department and the state board in implementing the Education Accountability Act of 2009. The State Review Panel may review Priority Improvement Plans and Turnaround Plans for schools and districts, which may include a site visit. The State Review Panel must review all schools and districts nearing the end of the Accountability Clock.
Strategy	Methods to reach goals. Which strategies are chosen depends on coherence, affordability, practicality, and efficiency and should be research-based. This is a component of the UIP process.
Student Growth Percentile (SGP)	A way of understanding a student's current growth in achievement based on his/her prior scores and relative to other students with similar prior scores. A growth percentile of 60 in math means the student's growth exceeds that of 60% of his/her academic peers. Also referred to as a "growth percentile."
Target	A specific, quantifiable outcome that defines what would constitute success in a particular area of intended improvement, within a designated period of time. This is a component of the UIP process.
Targeted Support and Improvement (TS)	Schools identified for support and improvement under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), based on having at least one student group that is consistently underperforming on at least 3 of the ESSA indicators.
Test Participation Test Participation Rate	See participation rate.
Turnaround Plan	 One of the types of plans required for schools that do not meet state expectations for attainment on the performance indicators. Schools and districts that earn less than 34% of their DPF or SPF points are assigned to a Turnaround plan category. In Colorado's state accountability system, schools assigned to the turnaround plan category must engage in one of the following strategies: Employ a lead turnaround partner that uses research-based strategies and has proven successful working with schools under similar circumstances, which turnaround partner will be immersed in all aspects of developing and collaboratively executing the plan and will serve as a liaison to other school partners. Reorganize the oversight and management structure within the school to provide greater, more effective support. Seek recognition as an innovation school or cluster with other schools that have similar governance management structures to form an innovation school zone pursuant to the Innovation Schools Act. Hire a public or private entity that uses research-based strategies and has a proven record of success working with schools under similar circumstances to manage the school pursuant to a contract with the local school board or the Charter School Institute. For a school that is not a charter school, convert to a charter school;

Term	Definition
	 For a charter school, renegotiate and significantly restructure the charter school's charter contract. Closing a school. Investing in research-based strategies focused on early learning and development to address any deficiencies identified in the early childhood learning needs assessment. This may be done in combination with at least one other research-based strategy named in this list. Other actions of comparable or greater significance or effect, including those interventions required for low-performing schools under the ESEA of 1965 and accompanying guidance (turnaround model, restart model, school closure, or transformation model).

Appendix B: Model District Accreditation Contract for Districts Accredited with Improvement

1. Parties

This contract is between the local school board for [*School District Name*], hereinafter referred to as the District, and the Colorado State Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as the State Board, to administer accreditation in accordance with part 2 of article 11 of title 22 and 1 CCR 301-1.

2. Length of Contract

This accreditation contract shall have a term of one year.

3. Renegotiation

The contract may be renegotiated at any time by the parties, based upon appropriate and reasonable changes in circumstances upon which the original terms of the contract were based.

4. Attainment on Performance Indicators

The District will be responsible for overseeing the academic programs offered in its schools and ensuring that those programs meet or exceed state and local expectations for levels of attainment on the four statewide performance indicators, as specified in 1 CCR 301-1.

5. Adoption and Implementation of District Plan

The District shall create, adopt and implement an Improvement Plan, as required by the Colorado Department of Education (Department), in accordance with the time frames specified in 1 CCR 301-1. Said plan will conform to all of the requirements specified in 1 CCR 301-1.

6. Accreditation of Public Schools and Adoption and Implementation of School Plans

The District will implement a system of accrediting all of its schools. The system shall include accreditation categories that are comparable to the accreditation categories for school districts specified in section 22-11-207, C.R.S, meaning that the District's accreditation system shall emphasize school attainment of the four statewide performance indicators, as described in 1 CCR 301-1, and may, in the District's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the District. The District's accreditation system also may include additional measures specifically for those schools that have been designated as Alternative Education Campuses, in accordance with the provisions of 1 CCR 301-57. The District will ensure that plans are implemented for each school in compliance with the requirements of the State Board pursuant to 1 CCR 301-1. Schools that continue to perform at a level that results in being required to adopt a Priority Improvement or Turnaround Plan will be subject to restructuring or closure, in accordance with the provisions of section 22-11-210, C.R.S.

7. Accreditation of Online Schools

The District will implement a system of accrediting its online schools, as defined in section 22-30.7-102(9.5), C.R.S. This system shall emphasize the online school's attainment on the four statewide performance indicators, as described in 1 CCR 301-1, as well as alignment to the quality standards outlined in section 22-30.7-105(3)(b), C.R.S., and compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements, in accordance with section 22-30.7-103(3)(m) C.R.S. This system may, in the District's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the District.

8. Substantial and Good-Faith Compliance with Applicable Statutes, Regulations, and Department Policies and Procedures

The District will substantially comply with all statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the District and Department and all Department policies and procedures applicable to the District, including, but not limited to, the following:

- the provisions of article 44 of title 22 concerning budget and financial policies and procedures;
- the provisions of article 45 of title 22 concerning accounting and financial reporting; and

• the provisions of section 22-32-109.1, C.R.S., concerning school safety.

9. Consequences for Non-Compliance

If the Department has reason to believe that the District is not in substantial compliance with one or more of the statutory or regulatory requirements applicable to the District, the Department shall notify the District that it has ninety (90) days after the date of notice to come into compliance. If, at the end of the ninety-day period, the Department finds the District is not substantially in compliance with the applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, meaning that the District has not yet taken the necessary measures to ensure that it meets the applicable legal requirements as soon as practicable, the District may be subject to the interventions specified in sections 22-11-207 through 22-11-210, C.R.S. If the District has failed to comply with the provisions of article 44 of title 22 or article 45 of title 22, the District does not remedy the noncompliance within ninety (90) days, and loss of accreditation is required to protect the interests of the students and parents of students enrolled in the District public schools, the Department may recommend to the State Board that the State Board remove the District's accreditation.

If the Department determines that the District has substantially failed to meet requirements specified in this accreditation contract and that immediate action is required to protect the interests of the students and parents of students enrolled in the District's public schools, the Department may change the District's accreditation category prior to conclusion of the annual performance review. When the Department conducts its annual performance evaluation of the District's performance, the Department will take into consideration the District's compliance with the requirements specified in this accreditation contract before assigning the District to an accreditation category.

10. Monitoring Compliance with Contract

For purposes of monitoring the District's compliance with this contract, the Department may require the District to provide information or may conduct site visits as needed.

11. Signatures

Local School Board President

Signature

District Superintendent

Signature

Commissioner of the Colorado Department of Education

Signature

Colorado State Board of Education Chairman

Signature

Date
Date
Date

Date

Appendix C: District Accreditation Contract for District Accredited with Priority Improvement or Turnaround

1. Parties

This contract is between the local school board for [*School District Name*], hereinafter referred to as the District, and the Colorado State Board of Education, hereinafter referred to as the State Board, to administer accreditation in accordance with part 2 of article 11 of title 22 and 1 CCR 301-1.

2. Length of Contract

This accreditation contract shall have a term of one year.

3. Renegotiation

The contract may be renegotiated at any time by the parties, based upon appropriate and reasonable changes in circumstances upon which the original terms of the contract were based.

4. Attainment on Performance Indicators

The District will be responsible for overseeing the academic programs offered in its schools and ensuring that those programs meet or exceed state and local expectations for levels of attainment on the four statewide performance indicators, as specified in 1 CCR 301-1.

5. Adoption and Implementation of District Plan

The District shall create, adopt and implement a Priority Improvement Plan, as required by the Colorado Department of Education (Department), in accordance with the time frames specified in 1 CCR 301-1. Said plan will conform to all of the requirements specified in 1 CCR 301-1.

6. Consequences of Continued Low-Performance

Based on the 2017 District Performance Framework, the District will enter Year 1 of Accredited with Priority Improvement Plan. If the District continues to perform at a level that results in being Accredited with a Priority Improvement Plan or Turnaround Plan in following years, the State Board will direct the District to take significant action, in accordance with section 22-11-209, C.R.S.

7. Accreditation of Public Schools and Adoption and Implementation of School Plans

The District will implement a system of accrediting all of its schools. The system shall include accreditation categories that are comparable to the accreditation categories for school districts specified in section 22-11-207, C.R.S, meaning that the District's accreditation system shall emphasize school attainment of the four statewide performance indicators, as described in 1 CCR 301-1, and may, in the District's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the District. The District's accreditation system also may include additional measures specifically for those schools that have been designated as Alternative Education Campuses, in accordance with the provisions of 1 CCR 301-57. The District will ensure that plans are implemented for each school in compliance with the requirements of the State Board pursuant to 1 CCR 301-1. Schools that continue to perform at a level that results in being required to adopt a Priority Improvement or Turnaround Plan will be subject to restructuring or closure, in accordance with the provisions of section 22-11-210, C.R.S.

8. Accreditation of Online Schools

The District will implement a system of accrediting its online schools, as defined in section 22-30.7-102(9.5), C.R.S. This system shall emphasize the online school's attainment on the four statewide performance indicators, as described in 1 CCR 301-1, as well as alignment to the quality standards outlined in section 22-30.7-105(3)(b), C.R.S., and compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements, in accordance with section 22-30.7-103(3)(m) C.R.S. This system may, in the District's discretion, include additional accreditation indicators and measures adopted by the District.

9. Substantial and Good-Faith Compliance with Applicable Statutes, Regulations, and Department Policies and Procedures

The District will substantially comply with all statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the District and Department and all Department policies and procedures applicable to the District, including, but not limited to, the following:

- the provisions of article 44 of title 22 concerning budget and financial policies and procedures;
- the provisions of article 45 of title 22 concerning accounting and financial reporting; and
- the provisions of section 22-32-109.1, C.R.S., concerning school safety.

10. Consequences for Non-Compliance

If the Department has reason to believe that the District is not in substantial compliance with one or more of the statutory or regulatory requirements applicable to the District, the Department shall notify the District that it has ninety (90) days after the date of notice to come into compliance. If, at the end of the ninety-day period, the Department finds the District is not substantially in compliance with the applicable statutory or regulatory requirements, meaning that the District has not yet taken the necessary measures to ensure that it meets the applicable legal requirements as soon as practicable, the District may be subject to the interventions specified in sections 22-11-207 through 22-11-210, C.R.S. If the District has failed to comply with the provisions of article 44 of title 22 or article 45 of title 22, the District does not remedy the noncompliance within ninety (90) days and loss of accreditation is required to protect the interests of the students and parents of students enrolled in the District's accreditation.

If the Department determines that the District has substantially failed to meet requirements specified in this accreditation contract and that immediate action is required to protect the interests of the students and parents of students enrolled in the District's public schools, the Department may change the District's accreditation category prior to conclusion of the annual performance review. When the Department conducts its annual performance evaluation of the District's performance, the Department will take into consideration the District's compliance with the requirements specified in this accreditation contract before assigning the District to an accreditation category.

11. Monitoring Compliance with Contract

For purposes of monitoring the District's compliance with this contract, the Department may require the District to provide information or may conduct site visits as needed.

12. Signatures

Local School Board President	
Signature	Date
District Superintendent	
Signature	Date
Commissioner of the Colorado Department of Education	
Signature	Date
Colorado State Board of Education Chairman	
Signature	Date

Appendix D: Sample District Performance Framework Report (2019)

	District o reference						te has assig in the officia				et on which this -year or multi-	
			RADO ent of Education		Preli	minary	y 2019 Di	strict Perforn	iance	e Fr	ameviork	
	3124 San	ıple Di	strict						Le	vels:	EMH - (1-Year)	Para and mark
	Accredita	ation F	Rating				Offic	ial Rating based	on 1-Y	'ear	DPF Report	Total points earned out of total points eligible on the
The three key	Ac	credit	ed: Meet	ts 95% I	Participat	ion		59.6/100				district framework.
performance indicators for	The	e year o	on the acc	countabi	lity clock (if	applicab	le) will be loo	ated here.	Distin	ction		
which districts are held accountable including points, percent of points earned and ratings.	right hand co overall perce represents th carned is mat accountabilit category by c	rner of t nt of poi tched to ty partici one level	he black titl nts carned t ntage of poli the scoring pation rate . Refer to th	e bar abov on the offic nts carned guide to d of 95% on	e. Districts an cial framework across all per etermine the a two or more a	e assigned c. The overa formance i accreditations ssessment	an accreditation all percent of fra ndicators. The o on rating. Failing s will reduce the	rk as indicated in the n rating based on the anework points of ficial percent of points g to meet the e overall accreditation nal information.	Priori Turna	verner ty Imp round	R	This bar chart displays the percent of points earned, and the associated scoring rubric.
anu raunys.	Inclicator I	Rating	Totals	_			Neighted Pts		based	onthe	n categories a e stotal percentage	
The participation	Performance Academic Act	hieveme			% Pts Earn 53.0% 61.0%		ned/Pts Eligible 15.9/30 24.4/40	Rating Approaching Approaching	of point	dited (with Distinction:	The accountability
rate reflects the percent of students	Academic Growth Postsecordary & Workforce Readiness ASSUFANCES				64.4%		19.3/30	Meets	Accre. 56.0%		4	participation rate is used for accountability
represented in the achievement	Accountabilit Finance	ty Partic	ipation Rate	2				Rating Meets 95% Meets Requirement	Accredited with Improvement Plan: 44.0% - 55.9% determination pot meet the			determinations. Districts that do not meet the 95% test
results on all relevant assessments,	Safety Test Parti	cipatio	on Rates*	4				Meets Requirement	5 Accre	vemer	<i>sith Priority</i> # Plan: 吗	participation rate for more than one
including alternate	2						Accountabilit	×		dited u	with Turnaround	subject area
assessments.	Subject	-	Total	Valid SCORE	Participation Rate	Parent Excuses	Participation Rate**	Rating	Ptan: 0.0%	33.99	5	(while removing parent
This rate is not factored into	English Langi	uage Art		7,491	97.5%	39	98.7%	Meets 95%	insuff	icient	Data: No	excusals) are
accountability	Math Science		7,682	7,524	97.9% 98.0%	39 19	98.7% 98.8%	Meets 95% Meets 95%		able a	chievement and	reduced one accreditation
determinations but is						13	30.0%	MCCCS 3540	growd	nuata	<u>.</u>	category.
important for	Summary	of Rat	tings by E	MHLev					_			
interpretation.	EMH Level	Perfo	nance Indic.				sighted Pts :d/Pts Elígíble		% Pt EN		Rating	
	Elementary		nic Achiever		59.7%		23.9/40	Approaching	67		and the second second	
		Acado	nic Growth		73.2%		43.9/60	Meets	6	0.0	Accredited	
	Middle	- Shannak	nic Achiever	ment	53.5%		21.4/40	Approaching	54.	%	Improvement	
	105.6		nic Growth nic Achiever	98.5729	55.4% 45.8%		33.2/60	Approaching				
	High	- Shannak -	nic Achiever nic Growth	nenc	45.0% 54.5%		13.7/30 21.8/40	Approaching Approaching	54.	3%	Improvement	
			condary & W	/orkforce.			19.3/30	Meets				
	(**) Parti cipati	ion ratir	s are based o	on the Acco	untability Parti	cipation Rat	e, which exclude:	uide on the last page of t Parent Excusals from th it asparticipants regardle	e denomi	ator a ther t	ind counts English hey tested.	
	Ratings are pres section.				informati	onal only	and may no	l ratings by EMH le t coincide with ove trict rating is displa	rall dis	trict/:	school ratings	due to different

accounta	, able (continu	nber of students for which the ously enrolled students). The p rcentage of students that recei-	articipa	ition rate	identifie	d group n		rformance of the performance of a wide.	
		COLORADO Department of Education PI	reliin	inary 2019	9 Distric	t Pe fo	ormance	Framework	Indicates grade leve of report a
ludes evant	3124 Sam	ple District	-	4			Elei	nentary - (1-¥📢	the data s on which
rnate	CADEMIC	ACHIEVEMENT	10	10					this report based (1-
essment CSLA				Participation	Mean Scale	Percentile	• Pts Earned/		year or
ults.	Subject	Student Group	Count	Rate	Score	Rank	Eligible	Rating	multi-year
	CMAS-	All Students	2,789	98,9%	741.9	55	6/8	Meets	
	English Langunge Arts	Previously Identified for READ Pan	469	99.6%	704.5	#	0/0	-	1
glish arners: lude NEP.	Carrier age Mrcs	English Learners	773	98.4%	732.4	34	0.5/1	Approaching	One
		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	2,234	99.2%	738.0	47	0.5/1	Approaching	additional
, and		Minority Students	2,181	98.9%	738.9	48	0.5/1	Approaching	bonus po
2		Students with Disabilities	348	96.4%	705.8	1	0.25/1	DoestotMeet	may be assigned
lents.	CMAS - Math	All Students	2,814	99.1%	737.0	56	6/8	Mecis	students
- Faculture		English Learners	800	99.6%	729.8	38	0.5/1	Approaching	previous
-English rners:		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	2,256	99,4%	734.1	49	0.5/1	Approaching	identified
ide		Minority Students	2,207	99,3%	734.6	50	0.75/1	Meets	for a REA
ary	N. Genterit	Students with Disabilities	350	96.4%	708.9	3	0.25/1	DoesNotMeet	plan when
e	CMAS-	All Students	908	98.9%	601.1	49	4/8	Approaching	their mean score mea
uage	Scio A dash	n ('-') in any cell indicates no da	ita is av	ailable for the	presented	metric.	0.5/1	Approaching	or exceed
r than	-	Treepressees Trice concilengible	122	2317-10	20212		0.5/1	Approaching	the
lish Ionto		Minority Students	733	98.7%	592.7	44	0.5/1	Approaching	approachi
ents _OTE)		Students with Disabilities	128	95,0%	509.6	6	25/1	Does Not Meet	expectatio
are not	TOTAL		\$F.	\$	4	- 401	21,5,'36	Approaching	cut-score.
gnated	ACADEMIC	GROWTH							-
ELLS.					All and an		Distant		
ting in		StudentGroup				n Growth tile/Rate	Pts Earned/ Eligible	Nating	Mean sca
l, this p also	CMAS-	All Students		1,783		2.0	6/8	Mchts	score
des	English	English Learners		559	5	2.0	0.75/1	Meets	represent: the average
	Language Arts	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		1,444	5	2.0	0.75/1	Meets	of valid
ents.		Minority Students		1,437	5	2.0	0.75/1	Meets	scores
		Students with Disabilities		196	3	7.5	0.5/1	Approaching	across
	CMAS - Math	All Students		1,787	s	4.0	6/8	Meets	grades for
Contractor in the	1	English Learners		564		5.0	0.75/1	Meets	the
lent with bilities:		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		1,447		4.0	0.75/1	Meets	identified
ides		Minority Students		1,439		5.0	0.75/1	Meets	group.
ents with	and the second s	Students with Disabilities		198		6.0	0.5/1	Improaching	ELP On-
only	ELP	English Language Proficiency (ELP)		681		0.0	2.2	Meets	track poin
504 s).		On Track to Proficiency		695		.0%	1.5/2	Meets	are award
	TOTAL			#			20.5/28	Meets	here.
	results from 20	rys the performance indicator data for th 18-19. Multi-Year reports include results vement: mean scale scores represent out	for years	2016-17through 2	:016-19.	art. SS			
	count parent ex Academic Grow	cusals as non-participants. th: median student growth percentiles ar	id percen	tages of students o	ontracktomee	t targets rep	resent outcomes		
		ident groups. The On-Track to EL proficie Mormation regarding Academic Achieven		and the second se					

Total growth performance by elementary level including points earned and points eligible along with final indicator rating.

Count represents number of students for which the district is accountable (continuously enrolled students). The **participation rate** reflects the actual percentage of students that received a valid score.

Percentile rank reflects the performance of the identified group relative to the performance of all students across schools statewide.

issessment esults.	CADEMIC A Subject CMAS - English Languago an a	ACHIEVEMENT Student Group All Students FEnglish Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	Count 2,407 601	Participation Rate 97.5%	Mean Scale Score		Pts Earned/		data set o which this report is
ssessment esults.	CMAS- English	All Students English Learners	2,407	Rate			Pts Earned/		
inglish earners: include NEP,	CMAS- English	All Students English Learners	2,407						based (1-
nglish earners: iclude NEP,	English 📻	English Learners	1004000000	97.5%		Rank	Eligible	Rating	year or
nglish earners: clude NEP,		A CONTRACT OF A	601		740.3	50	6/8	Meets	multi-yea
clude NEP, 📕		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		94.6%	734.8	36	0.5/1	Approaching	-
		1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 - 1979 -	1,818	98.1%	737.6	44	0.5/1	Approaching	
D and		Minority Students	1,870	97.2%	738.6	46	0.5/1	Approaching	
	Chase ha	Students with Disabilities	289	96.0%	705.0	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	Mean
6 C	CMAS - Math	All Students	2,431	98.6%	728.3	42	4/8	Approaching	scale
tudents.		English Learners	630	99.4%	723.9	31	0.5/1	Approaching	represents
n-English		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	1,835	98.6%	724.6	32	0.5/1	Approaching	
arners:		Minority Students	1,893	98.6%	726.1	35	0.5/1	Approaching	
lude –		Students with Disabilities	291	96.3%	699.8	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	average c
nary	CMAS - Science	All Students	816	99.0%	573.3	39	4/8	Approaching	valid
ne	suence	English Learners	203	99,5%	537,5	19	0.5/1	Approaching	scores across
iguage		A dash ('-') in any cell indicates	s no data	is available f	or the prese	nted metri		Approaching	across arades fo
er than glish		withorrey occounts.	000	351010	pagna	29	0.5/1	Approaching	the
udents -	- Sec. 11.1	Students with Disabilities	90	100.0%	480.2	2	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	identified
HLOTE)	TOTAL				*		19.25/36	Approaching	group.
18 this	Subject CMAS -	Student Group All Students		Count 2,268	Percent 46	1772	Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8	Rating Approaching	
pup also	English Language Arts	English Learners		599	50		0.75/1	Meets	
ludes	and soft and an	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		1,721	47		0.5/1	Approaching	
LL		Minority Students		1,777	45		0.5/1	Approaching	
idents.	MARTINE ULTERSTONEY	Students with Disabilities		237	38	and an	0.5/1	Approaching	
	CMAS - Math	All Students		2,266	48		4/8	Approaching	
		English Learners		600	54		0.75/1	Meets	
		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		1,720	48		0.5/1	Approaching	
udent with sabilities:		Minority Students		1,773	48		0.5/1	Approaching	ELP On-
	ELP	Students with Disabilities English Language Proficiency (ELP)		237	43		0.5/1	Approaching Monitor	track point
idents with	ELP	On Track to Proficiency		195		.0 7%	1.5/2	Meets	are awarde
		on made to monutancy		*	40.		15.5/28	Approaching	here.

elevant Iternate ssessment esults. nglish	3124 Sam ACADEMIC		Prel mi	nary 201	9 Distric	t Pe	formance	Framework	
ssessment sults.		ple District					Hig	h School - 🖓 Year	the data se on which
	ACADEIVIIC								this report
ıglish	1	ACHIEVEMENT	<u> </u>				λ		based (1-
nglish	ev								year or
	Subject CO PSAT -	Student Group	Count	Rate:	Score	Rank	Eligible	Rating	multi-year)
arners	Evidence-	All Students	1,273 280	95.3% 90.9%	436.8 400.1	23	4/8	Approaching Boes Not Meet	
lude NEP,	Based	English Learners					0.25/1	and the state of t	
P, and	Reading 2	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		95.1%	429.3	18	0.5/1	Approaching	
P udents.	Weiling	Minority Students	1,019	95.1%	432.2	20	0.5/1	Approaching	
iuents.		Students with Disabilities	142	95.6%	368.7	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	Student
n-English	CO PSAT - Math	All Students	1,275	95.3%	427.7	29	4/8	Approaching	with
arners:	TAICUT.	English Learners	282	90,9%	403.0	9	0.25/1	DoesNotMeet	Disabilitie
lude		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	932	95.1%	421.0	22	0.5/1	Approaching	includes students
mary		Minority Students	1,021	95.1%	424.3	24	0.5/1	Approaching	with IEP
me		Students with Disabilities	142	95.6%	364.9	1	0.25/1 -	upes Not Meet	only
iguage ier than	CMAS-	All Students	569	95.3%	572.5	19	4/8	Approaching	(not 504s).
glish	Science	English Learners	98	97.1%	518.8	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	
udents		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	383	96.0%	567.7	17	0.5/1	Approaching	
HLOTE)		Minority Students	474	96.3%	566.9	1.7	0.5/1	Approaching	r
ILUIE)									
o are not signated ELLs. arting with	A das	sh ('-') in any cell indicates no d CGROWTH	ata is ava *	ilable for the *	presented m	netric. +	0.25/1 16.5/36	Does not the Approaching	
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also	TOTAL		ata is a∨a ≁	ilable for the * Count	Median	retric. + Growth He/Rate	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	and the second second second second	scale score represents the average o
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also ludes	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT	GROWTH	ata is a∨a *	*	Median Percent	Growth	16.5/36 Pts Earned/	Approaching	scale score represents the
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also dudes LL	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence-	C GROWTH	ata is ava	Count	+ Median Percent 46	Growth	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible	Approaching Rating	scale score represents the average o valid
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also dudes LL	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based	C GROWTH StudentGroup - All Students		Count 1,073	+ Median Percent 46 45	Growth He/Rate	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligibie 4/8	Approaching Rating Approaching	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence-	CGROWTH Student Group - All Students English Learners		Count 1,073 206	• Median Percent 46 45	Growth He/Rate i.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for the
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this oup also dudes LL	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Writh	Student Group - All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities		Count 1,073 206 739	Median Percent 46 45 45 45	Growth Ne/Rate 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for the identified
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this pup also ludes LL idents.	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Write CC PSAT/SAT	CGROWTH Student Group - All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students		+ 1,073 206 739 888	Median Percent 46 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	Growth Ile/Rate 3.0 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for the
o are not signated ELLs. Arting with 18, this Judes Lu udents. gh school 3RVV	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Writh	Student Group - All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities		+ 1,073 206 739 888 108	Median Percent 46 45 45 45 45 46 25 46	 Growth ile/Rate i.0 i.0 i.0 i.0 i.0 	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.25/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching Does Not Meet	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for the identified
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this Judes Ludes LL Idents. gh school 3RW owth	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Write CC PSAT/SAT	Student Group - All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities - All Students		Count 1,073 206 739 888 108 1,647	Median Percent 46 45 45 46 25 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46 46	+ Growth He/Rate 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.25/1 4/8	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Does Not Meet Approaching	scale score represent: the average of valid scores across grades for the identified
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this pup also ludes LL idents. gh school 3RW owth cludes	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Write CC PSAT/SAT	CGROWTH Student Group All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students Students All Students English Learners		Count 1,073 206 739 888 108 1,647 363	Median Percent 46 45 45 46 22 46 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	+ Growth 11e/Rate 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 4/8 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Does NotMeet Approaching Approaching	scale score represents the average o valid scores across grades for the identified
o are not signated ELLs. arting with 18, this nup also ludes LL idents. gh school 3RW owth cludes SAT9 to	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence Based Reading & Write CO PSAT/SAT Math	CGROWTH Student Group All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		- Count 1,073 206 739 888 108 1,647 363 1,175	Median Percent 46 45 45 46 45 46 45 45 45 45 45 45	+ Growth He/Rate 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.25/1 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Does Not Meet Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching	scale represents the average o valid scores across grades for the identified group.
o are not signated ELLs. Hing with 18, this Iudes Ludes LL dents. gh school 3RVV pwth cludes SAT9 to SAT10,	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence- Based Reading & Write CC PSAT/SAT	CGROWTH Student Group All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Linch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students Students Students Students English Language Proficiency (ELP)	*	* Count 1,073 206 739 888 108 1,647 363 1,175 1,345 1,75 1,97	Median Porcent 46 45 46 46 25 46 46 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	Growth He/Rate 3.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 2/2	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Does Not Meet Approaching Approach	scale score represents the average o valid scores grades for the identified group.
o are not signated ELLs. triting with 18, this rup also ludes LL dents. gh school 3RW bowth cludes	TOTAL ACADEMIC Subject CO PSAT/SAT Evidence Based Reading & Write CO PSAT/SAT Math	CGROWTH StudentGroup All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-PriceLunchEligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities All Students English Learners Free/Reduced-PriceLunchEligible Minority Students	*	Count 1,073 206 739 888 108 1,647 363 1,175 1,345 175	Median Percent 45 45 45 46 46 46 46 45 45 45 45 59	Growth He/Rate 3.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0	16.5/36 Pts Earned/ Eligible 4/8 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1 0.5/1	Approaching Rating Approaching Approaching Approaching Does Not Meet Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching Approaching	scale represents the average o valid scores across grades for the identified group.

PWR sub indicator

The Postsecondary and Workforce Readiness in applicable to the district and high school framew		The data set on which this report is based (see scoring guide).
COLORADO Department of Education	Preliminary 2019 [District Performance Framework

3124 | Sample District High School - (1-Year SAT POSTSECONDARY AND WORKFORCE READINESS participation Disaggregated rates reflects SAT and the actual dropout rates SAT All Students 569 478.4 95.6% моргоасника percentage of are awarded all eligible denn English Learners Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Englis 97 420.9 95.2% 0.25/1 Does Not Meet points for the students that seu 472 -94.7% 0.5/1 Approaching first time in the ading & 472.0 95.5% 0.5/1 received a ority Students 468 Approaching 2019 iting valid score Students w. b Disabilities 374.5 on 8% 0.25/1 Does Not Meet frameworks. SAT All Students 458. 2/4 95.6% Approaching English Learners 97 415.0 95.2% 0.25/1 Does Not Meet ath Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 77. 451.3 94.7% 0.5/1 Approaching Minority Students 468 454.3 95.5% 0.5/1 Approaching Students with Disabilities 365.7 90.8% 0.25/1 Does Not Meet 66 Dropout All Students 5,692 6/8 Meets Meets English Learners 906 1.1% 1.5/2 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 0.5% 2/2 Exceeds 3,664 Points are Minority Students 4.349 0.8% 1.5/2 Meets assigned at Students with Disabilities 640 0.3% 2/2 Exceeds the 'all Matriculation All Students 529 51.8% 2/4 students' level 2-Year Higher Education Instituti. 19.1% only for 4-Year Higher Education Instituti. 10 30.4% matriculation. Career & Technical Education 4.3% Individual Graduation Meets All Students 405 74 90.9% 6/8 pathways are 1.5/2 Meets English Learners 91.5% 47 7yı presented for ASCENT Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 301 7 yr 90.4% 1.5/2 Meets information students are Minority Students Meets 308 7vr 92.2% 1.5/2 only. included within Students with Disabilities 39 84.6% 1/2 33.5/52 Approaching 7yr the on-time (4-TAL Meets year) grad rate. FERENCE TABLE: DISAGGREGATED GRADUATION RATES 7-Ye ar (AYG 1 114) 4-Vear 5.Vea 5-Vear Student Group (AYG 2017) (AYG 2016) (AYG 2015) Best Rate All Students 79.8% 87.0% 89.6% 90. 7yr The 'best of' English Learners 72.6% 87.4% 91.0% 91. graduation rate Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 88.1% 89.6% 80.6% 90. 741 is used for point

Minority Students 81.3% 87.4% 91.0% 92.2 Students with Disabilities 52.9% 81.6% 70.8% 84.6 determinations. O SAT: represent outcomes for designated subjects and student groups; participation rates count parent excusals as no participant vopout Rates: represent percentages of students enrolled in grades 7-12 at any time during the year who left and did nc; subsequently enroll in nother Colorado school. Calculations for 1-Year report are based on the 2018 End of Year (EOY) data submission. Multi- ear reports include EOY definitions are located here. cords for years 2016 through 2018. Matriculation Rates: represent percentages of students who enrolled in a Career & Technical Education (CTE) program or 2- or 4-year institute of

higher education in the year following graduation. Students who earned a CTE certificate, collage degree, or other indust y-recognized credential prior to graduation are also included. Calculations for 1-Year report are based on the 2018 graduation cohort. Multi-Year eports include 2016 through 2018 cohorts.

Graduation Rates: represent percentages of students graduating high school within designated timeframes. Ratings are based on the best of the 4-, 5-, 6-, and 7-year graduation rates. AYGs designate Anticipated Years of Graduation, which are defined as four years after the year that students initially enroll in 9th grade. Calculations for the 1-Year and Multi-Year reports are based on data for students with AYGs 1 etween 2015 and 2018

Total performance on PWR indicator including points earned and points eligible along with the final indicator rating. http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/pwn

Related performance frameworks resources, including an annual changes document (that reflects additional changes) are available at: http://www.cde.state.co.us/accountability/performanceframeworksresources

The data set on which this report is based (see scoring guide)

Appendix E: Sample School Performance Framework Report



032: Samp	le School 3124: Sample ACHIEVEMENT StudentGraup	District	inary 201	L9 Schoo	l Perfo		Framework Intary - (1-Year)	grade level of report an the data se on which this report i based (1-							
CADEMIC /	ACHIEVEMENT Student Group	¥			¥	Eleme	entary - (1-Year)	this report i							
ubject. MAS-	StudentGroup	~	Participation				032: Sample School 3124: Sample District Elementary - (1-Year)								
MAS-						Des Found /		year or							
MAS-			Rate	Score	Rank	Elicible		multi-year).							
Inglish	All Students	133	100.0%	709.9	1	2/8	Does Not Meet	1000							
	Previously Identified for READ Plan	52	100.0%	691.2	+	0/0		One additional							
anguage Arts	English Learners	105	100.0%	705.7	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	bonus poin							
	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	126	100.0%	709.4	1	0.25/1	Poes Not Meet	may be							
	Minority Students	129	100.0%	708.6	1	0.25/1	Doc. Not Meet	assigned for							
	Students with Disabilities	16	100.0%	681.9	1	0.25/1	Does No. Meet	students							
MAS - Math	AH Students	133	100.0%	710.9	5	2/8	Does Not Me +	previously							
	Julish Learners	105	100.0%	707.8	2	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	identified							
		126		710.5	4	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Does Not Meet	for a READ plan when							
		129	100.0%	709.9	3		Does Not Meet	their mean							
		16	100.0%	68	1	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	score meet							
MAS-		37	97.6%	489.9	2	2/8	Does Not Meet	or exceeds							
cience		ites no d	ata is availat	le for the pre	esented m	petric	Does Not Meet	the							
								approachin							
		503				1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1		expectation							
				402.5	2	0.23/1	DOCIMOCIMCCC	cut-score.							
OTAL		*		4	*	8.75/35	Does Not Meet								
		24.11		201	N.(1)	an stas		Mean scale							
CADEMIC	GROWTH							score							
						Pts Earned/		represents							
	Student Group		Count			Eligible	Rating	the average of valid							
	All Students		86	50	.0	6/8	Meets	scores							
	English Learners		68	41	.0	0.5/1	Approaching	across							
ungunge mea	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		55			0.75/1	Meets	grades for							
	Minority Students		84	50	.0	0.75/1	Meets	the identifie							
	Students with Disabilities		n < 20	25		0/0	5.2	group.							
MAS - Math	All Students		88	37	.0	4/8	Approaching								
	English Learners		70	34	.5	0.25/1	Does Not Meet								
	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		85	37	.0	0.5/1	Approaching	ELP On- track point							
	Minority Students		86	37	.0	0.5/1	Approaching	are awarde							
	Judents with Disabilities		n < 20	10		0/0	-	for the first							
200 - C	English Language Proficiency (ELP)		158	52	.5	1.5/2	Meets	time within							
LP	English Language Pronotency (ELP)						Contraction of the local division of the loc								
LP	On Track to Proficiency		159	69.1	8%	1/2 <	Approaching	the 2019							
ILP OTAL			159	69. *	· · · - · ·	1/2	Approaching	reports.							
	MAS- cience OTAL CADEMIC MAS- nglich anguage Arts	Minority Students Students with Disabilities MAS - Math AII Students Proc/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities MAS - AII Students English Learn A daSh ('-') indica Proc/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students with Disabilities OTAL CADEMIC GROWTH abject Student Group MAS - AII Students Freg/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Students Students Freg/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students MAS - Math AII Students English Learners Freg/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students	Minority Students 129 Students with Disabilities 16 MAS-Math All Students 133 All Students 105 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible MAS- Math All Students 37 CADEM/IC GROWTH bigst Students with Disabilities n < 16 CADEM/IC GROWTH bigst Students with Disabilities MAS- All Students Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Minority Students Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible Free/Reduced-P	Minority Students 129 100.0% Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% MAS - Math All Students 133 100.0% Freiklicearners 105 100.0% Freiklicearners 105 100.0% MAS - Math All Students 129 100.0% Minority Students 129 100.0% Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% MAS - Math All Students 37 97.6% Minority Students 13 97.6% Minority Students 36 97.6% Minority Students 36 97.6% Minority Students 16 200.0% Students with Disabilities n < 16 OTAL * * CADEMIC GROWTH * * ubject Students 86 English Learners 68 Inglish Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 83 Minority Students 84 Students with Disabilities n < 12 MAS - Math All Students 88 English Learners 70 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 85 Minority Students 88 English Learners <	Minority Students 129 100.0% 708.6 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 681.9 MAS - Math All Students 133 100.0% 710.9 Paglish Learners 105 100.0% 707.8 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 126 100.0% 707.9 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 709.9 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 683.4 MAS - All Students 37 97.6% 489.9 English Learner A dash (-') indicates no data is available for the proc Proc/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 36 97.6% 480.5 Minority Students 36 97.6% 480.5 Students with Disabilities n < 16 - OTAL * * * MAS - All Students 86 500 Mash All Students 83 500 Minority Students 84 500 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 83 500 Minority Students 88 37 MAS - Math All Students 88 37 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 88 37 Free/Reduced-Price	Minority Students 129 100.0% 708.6 1 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 681.9 1 MAS - Math All Students 133 100.0% 707.8 2 Proc/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 126 100.0% 707.8 2 Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 126 100.0% 709.9 3 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 709.9 3 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 681.1 1 MAS - Math All Students 37 97.6% 490.9 2 English Learn A dash ('-) indicates no data is available for the presented m rec/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible 36 91.6% 482.9 1 Students with Disabilities n < 16 - - - - OTAL * * * * * * MAS - mplish anguage Aris All Students 86 50.0 - Inglish Learners 88 37.0<	Minority Students 129 100.0% 708.6 1 0.25/1 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 681.9 1 0.25/1 MAS - Math All Students 133 100.0% 710.9 5 2/8 Prosing Control of the sabilities 105 100.0% 710.9 5 2/8 Prosing Control of the sabilities 105 100.0% 701.9 5 2/8 Mass - Math All Students 129 100.0% 707.8 2 0.25/1 Mass - Math Minority Students 129 100.0% 683 1 0.25/1 Students with Disabilities 16 100.0% 683 1 0.25/1 MAss - Math A dash () indicates no data is available for the presented metric. Froe/Reduced-PriceLunch Eligible 36 97.6% 490.5 2 0.25/1 Minority Students 36 97.6% 490.5 2 0.25/1 Minority Students 36 97.6% 490.5 2 0.25/1	Minority Students129100.0%708.610.25/1Doc. Not MeetStudents with Disabilities1.6100.0%681.910.25/1Docs Not MeetMAS- MathAll Students1.33100.0%710.952/8Docs Not MeetAgish Learners1.051.00.0%707.820.25/1Docs Not MeetFree/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible1.261.00.0%707.820.25/1Docs Not MeetMAS-Marsing Students1.291.00.0%709.930.25/1Docs Not MeetStudents with Disabilities1.61.00.0%6.8110.25/1Docs Not MeetMAS-All Students3797.6%489.922.8Docs Not MeetMAS-English LearnA dash (-') Indicates no data is available for the presented metric.Prec/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible3697.9%490.520.25/1Docs Not MeetDocs Not Meet3697.9%490.520.25/1Docs Not MeetDocs Not MeetStudents3697.9%490.520.25/1Docs Not MeetMAS-Students3697.9%490.520.25/1Docs Not MeetUbjectStudents6.850.06/8MeetsMAS-All Students8650.06/8MeetsFree/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible8350.00.75/1MeetsFree/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible8837.00.7							

ncludes elevant		COLORADO Department of Education	Pre ir	minary 20:	9 School Performance Framework				Indicates grade level of report and the data set on
lternate ssessment	1932: Sample School 3124: Sample District Middle School - (1-Year)								which this report is
nd results.	ACADEMIC	ACHIEVEMENT			_				based (1- year or
nglish	Suble	StudentGroup		Participation Pate	Mean Scale Score	Percentile	Pts Earned/ Eligible	Rating	multi-year)
arners	CMAS-	All Students	109	100.0%	734.9	36	4/8	Approaching	
lude NEP,	English	Epplish Loargons	80	100.0%	730.0	26	0.5/1	Approaching	
P, and	Language Arts	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	101	100.0%	734.7	36	0.5/1	Approaching	
P Idents.		Minority Students	105	100.0%	734.8	36	0.5/1	Approaching	
idents.		Students with Disabilities	19	100.0%	709.3	1	0.25/1	DoesNotMeet	Mean
n-English	CMAS - Math	All Students	113	100.0%	716.2	14	2/8	DoesNotMeet	scale
arners:	and a reading	English Learners	84	100.0%	713.3	9	0.25/1	Docsilochice	score
lude		Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible	105	100.0%	715.9	13	0.25/1	DoesNotMeet	represents
mary me		Minority Students	109	100.0%	715.7	13	0.25/1	DoesNotMeet	the
guage		and a contract of the state of	19	100.0%	699.9	1		DoesNotMeet	average of valid
er than	CMAS-	Students with Disabilities			1000000		0.25/1	Does Not Meet	scores
glish	Science	All Students	34	100.0%	492.1	4	2/8		across
udents		English Le A dash ('-') indica	tes no d	ata is available		ented m		Does Not Meet	grades for
HLOTE) o are not		Free/Reduced rince concinengione	22	200,0 %	400.0	-	0.23/1	DoesNotMeet	the
signated		Minority Students	33	101 9%	489.6	3	0.25/1	Does Not Meet	identified group.
ELLS.	-	Students with Disabilities	n < 16		7	10	0/0	1.0	group.
arting in	TOTAL		*	*	4:	(#)	11.5/35	DoesNotMeet	
18, this oup also	ACADEMIC	GROWTH							
ludes					Median	elosiano.	Pts Earned/		
ELL.	Subject				Percenti			Rating	
udents.	CMAS-			111	72.0		8/8	Exceeds	
	English	English Learners		82	74	.0	1/1	Exceeds	
	Languagé Arts	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		103	71	.0	1/1	Exceeds	
		Minority Students		107	72	.0	1/1	Exceeds	
		Students with Disabilities		n < 20	8		0/0	(14)	
	CMAS - Math	All Students		111	58	.0	6/8	Meets	
		English Learners		82	61	.0	0.75/1	Meets	ELP On-
Jdent	1	Free/Reduced-Price Lunch Eligible		103	61	.0	0.75/1	Meets	track point
ident :h		Minority Students		107	58	.0	0.75/1	Meets	are awarde for the first
abilities:	>	Students with Disabilities		n < 20	6		0/0		time within
ludes	ELP	English Language Proficiency (ELP	}	49	79	.0	2/2	Exceeds	the 2019
dents with		On Track to Proficiency		49	63.	3%	2/2 <	LACCOUS	reports.
only	TOTAL			*	4		23.25/26	Exceeds	
t 504s).		eys the performance indicator data for t				alculations	are based on sta	te assessment	
	results from 20.	18-19. Multi-Year reports include result	sfor years	: 2016-17through 2	2016-19.				
	count parent ex	vement: mean scale scores represent o cusals as non-participants.		1					
		th: median student growth percentiles i dent groups: The On-Track to EL profic						iai designoted	
	subjects and stu	naent groups: The one match to be prome							

Appendix F: Understanding the Role of School Accountability Committees in Charter Schools

Are charter schools required to have School Accountability Committees?

Yes, the requirements of the Education Accountability Act of 2009 apply to *all* Colorado public schools, including charter schools. For more information about the role of School Accountability Committees as related to accreditation, see the State Board of Education's Rules for the Administration of Statewide Accountability Measures, available on the web page for the Education Accountability Act: http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/StateAccountabilityRegulations.asp.

What is the relationship between a charter school's governing board and its School Accountability Committee?

Charter schools are administered and governed by a governing body in a manner agreed to and set forth in the charter contract. The duties and function of the SAC are set forth in statute (CRS 22-11-401), and these duties cannot be the waived by the state board.

Charter schools may choose to have members of their governing body serve on the School Accountability Committee in order to complete any of the required duties of the School Accountability Committee. In the alternative, governing boards may establish a School Accountability Committee that report to the governing board on all tasks that are delegated to them, including making recommendations for the school's improvement plan and making recommendations on school spending priorities.

How are members of the School Accountability Committee selected?

The Education Accountability Act of 2009 indicates that local school boards and the Institute must determine the actual number of persons on School Accountability Committees and the method for selecting the members of the committees. (See section 22-11-401, C.R.S.) For charter schools, local school boards or the Institute may delegate these responsibilities to the charter school governing board, or negotiate an arrangement in the charter contract. Ultimately, it is the charter school's authorizer that determines how a school implements its School Accountability Committee.